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CONTINUING OPERATIONS

1 Revenue from Operations

2 Other Income

Total Income

HMT LIMITED

hIo.S9, Beliary Road, Bangalore - 560 032

CIN L29230KA1953GO1000748

5 TATEMENTOF STANDALONE AUDITED FINANCIAL RESULTS

FOR THE QUARTER AND YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024

(Rs inlakhs

Three months ended Year ended

Particulars

Expenses

a)Cost ofmaterials consumed

b)Changes inInventories (Increase)/decrease in SITMIP

c)Employee benefits expense

d)Oepreciatioc and amartjsatlort exqeose

e)Finance Costs

I} Other expenses

Total expenses

4 Profit II\.oss) before Exceptional Items

S Exceptional items

6 Profit I\\-ossj before tar

Tax Expense

Profit /(Loss) for the period from Continuing Operations(617)

11 oisCoNTlhlUED OPERATioNs

Profit l\Lossj for the period from Discontinuecl Operations

10 Tax Income/(expense) of Dis¢ontinued Cperations

11 Profit/(l¢›ss) from DiscontinMed Operations (9z10)

12 Profit /(Loss) for the period (8?11)

13 Other Comprehensive income

i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit/ (Loss)

ii) lncpme Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified

to (Profit)I Loss

Net Other Comprehensive Income

14 Total Comprehensive Income fortheperiod (12113)

IS Paid-up Equity Share Capital (Face Value - Rs10/-)

16 Other Equity

17 Earnings per share from continuing Operations

(face value Rs.10/- each)

i) Basic

ii) Diluted

Earnings per share trpm Discontinued Operations

(face value Rs.10/- each)

i) Basic

ii) Dlluted

Earnings per share from Continuing& Discontinued Operations

(face value Rs.10/- each)

i) Basic

ii) Diluted

31-03-2024 31-12-2023 31-03-2023 31-03-2024 3143-2023

Audited* Unaudited Audited Audited“ Audited

1602 1258 2017

1456 1225 1193

3058 2483 S210

1 227

(299)

206

5T

1154

2345

71?

(695,

1408

1408

{9,

1430

950 2006

{36) f238)

187 JSJ

52 5'é

800 2342

2003 4Z1T

4BC (1107)

48C (11“07)

785

480 (1892)

48 I ( 1892)

7 (42)

- 7

22 7 (49)

487 {1941

4791

5127

9918

3455

(143)

755

21

3893

8171

1747

1747

(695)

2442

2442

34

(9)

43

248S

355£0 35560 35560 35560

0.40

0.40

0.00

0.00

0.40

0.40

- - 10318

0.13 (0.53)

0.13 (0.53)

0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00

0.13 10.53)

0.13 (0.53)

0.69

0.69

0.00

0.00

0.69

0.69

5159

4838

9997

4286

(179)

734

211

13

3441

8506

149t

1491

705

706

706

28

21

727

35560

7833

0.20

0.20

0.00

0.00

0.20

0.20



ÊI.

A ASBETS

1 NonCurrent Aaaets

(a) Property, plant6 equipment

(b) Investment property

(c) Financial Assets

Investments

Other Financial Assets

(d) Debarred Tax Asaet (fleet)

(e) Other Assets

HMY LIMITED

No.59, Bellary Road, B•ngelöre - 560 032

CIN L2e230KA1903GOI000748

STATEMEHT OF CTANDALONE AUDITED FINANCIAL RESULTS

AS AY 31ST MARCH 2021

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF AS8ETSAHD LIABILITIES

Sub totaî

Current Aaaeta

(a) Inventories

(b) FlnenciaT Assets

Trade Receivables

Cash andCash equivalents

Bsnk balances otrier man Cash anal Cash equivalents

Loans

Otner Financial Aseets

(c) Current Tax Assels (Net)

(d) ŒherAssets

3 Non Current Aasets heid l'or sale

TÖTAL ASSETS

B EQUITY6 LIABILITÏES

1 Equity

(e} Equ¡ty sfiaæ capital

(b) Other equlty

2 Non-current liabilities

{e) Financial Liabilities

Non Current Flnanclal Liability

Sub total

Total equity

Employee Benefits

Sub tata)

3 C.urrent liabilities

(a) Flnenclal Liabillties

Borrowings

Trade Payables

Total oufsanding clues to Micro, Small& Hedium Enterperiaes

Tatal outstancfing ¢tues of creditors other than fgicro. Sma4f& Madfum En£erperi6os

(b) Other Fiaanclal Liabllmes

(c) Other Currant liabilities

(d) Provisions

Employee Benefits

Others

(e) Current Tax liablltles (Net)

Sub total

TOTAL LIABILITIES

TOTAL EQUiTY.& LIABIMTIES

(Rs in lakhs)

As et As at

31-03-2024 3143-z0z3

78B

141

896

180

7197B y1978

12B 1416

48 4

72 68

73135| 74522

1175 g70

14B3 1767

652 7638

16808 10Z31

30582 Z7470

5703 5661

584 966

2056 277û

59543[ 5747g

2S6 396

13297J] t32296

35560 35580

10318 7833

45B78] 43363

91

91

64172 64172

151

1694

3686

16687

241

24t

11

41‘T

19065

257 131

2B8 285

70 895

87005| 8866z

87096 gBS03

132974| 132296



woCe:

HMT LIMITED

No.59, Beriary Road, Bangalore - 560 032

CIH L29230KA1951GOt0O0748

STATEMENT OF5 TANDALONE AUDITED FINANCIAL RESULTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024

Particulars

STANDALONE CASHFLOWSTATEMENT

A Operating activities

Proflt/(ioss) before tax from continuing operations

Profit before tax

Acfjusfmenfs fa reconcile #ro/'it #eFore fax to nef cash fiows:

Depreciation and impairment of Property, Plent and Equipment and Investment Properties

Amortisation of Government Grant

Prafit'ar\ dispasal ol prc›perty, ptantand equipment and btor\ Current Assets Hetd forSa\e {net)

interest Income

Finance Costs

w’or//ng capifaf adjusfments.”

Movements inprovisions, Gratuity, others

(Increase)/Decrease intrade and other receivables and prepayments

(Increase)/Decrease ininventories

Increase/(Decrease) intrade and other payables

Income tax(paid)/reversed

Net cash flows from operating activities

B lnvegting activities

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment and Non Current Assets Held forSale

Purchase ofproperty, plant and equipment

Deposits with Banks

Interest received

Net cesh flows used ininvesting activities

Financing activities

interest Paid

Repayment ofborrowings

Net cash flows from/(used in)financing activities

Net increase incash and cash equivalents

Cash andcash equivalents atthe beginning ofthe year

Cash and cash equivalents at year end

(Rs in lakhs

Year ended

31-03-2024 31-93-2023

Audited” Audited

1747

1747

211

(2781)

(64)

(6577)

12J5

(5426)

1491

1491

211

(11)

t76'

(2107j

13

(38) 3891

241 (728)

(195 (104

(962) 8978

(1777) 11558

217 (378)

{1560) 11180

77

(447

(4353)

861

(3862)

(2

(2)

7316

7638 322

652 7638

The above Results forthe quarter and year ended 31st March 2024 have been reviewed by the Audit committee and approved by the Board alits Meeting hetd on 9tL

AUgUst 2024

2 As theCompany's Business Activity falls withina single primary operating segment i.e. Food Processing Machineries, the disclosure requirement of Accounting

Standard {Ind AS 108) on ’Segment Reporting’ is not applicable.

Figures of the last quaner are the balancing figures between Audited figures in respect of the fUII year and the published year-to-date figures upto the third quarter of the

current financial year

Figures of previous period .’ year's have been regrouped wherever necessary to conform with current period .’ year's figUres.

” Subject to C&AG Review

Place. Bangalore

By order ofthe Board ofDirectors

(Rajesh Kohli)

Chairman and Managing Director

(Addl. Charge)
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CONTINUING OPERATIONS

i Revenue from Operations

2 Other lncDme

Total Income

g)Other expenses

HMT LIMITED

No.59, eellary Road, Bangalore - S6o 032

STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED AUDITED FINANCIAL RESULTS

FOR THE QUARTER AND YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024

CIN: L29230KA1953GOI00074B

(Rs in lakhs)

Three months ended Year ended

Particulars

3 Expenses

a)Cost of materials consumed

b)Purchase of Stock in Trade

c) Changes in Inventories (Increase)/decrease in SIT/WEP

d) Employee benefits expense

e)Depreciation and amortisation expense

f] Finance Costs

Total expenses

Profit /(Loss) before Share oJ Investment in Associale& Joint venture,

Exceptional items& Tax from Continuing Operations

5a Share of Profit/(Lps5) of an Associate& Joint venture

5b Exceptional hems

6 Profit /(Loss] before Tax

7 Tax Expense

Profit /(Loss) for the period from Continuing Operations

11 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Profit /(Loss) for the period from Discontinued Operations

10 Tax income/withdrawal oftax/(Expense) of Discontinued Operations

11 Profit /(Loss) from Discontinued Operations

1z Profit /(Loss) for the period

13 Other Comprehensive Income

i) Items that will not be recIasslfied to profit /(Loss)

ii) Income Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified

to Profit/ (Loss)

Net Other Comprehensive Income

14 Total Comprehensive Income fprthe period (12113)

15 Profit/(Loss) for the year attributable to:

Equily holders

Non-Controlling Interest

16 Other Comprehensive Income attributable to:

Equily huiders

Non-Controlling Interest

17 Total other Comprehensive income fortheyear attributable to:

Equily holders

Non-Controlling Interest

18 Paid-up Equity Share Capital (race value — Rs.10/-)

t9 Other Equity

Z0 Earnings per share from Continuing Operations

(face value Rs.10/- each)

i) Basic

ii) Diluted

Earnings per share from Discontinued Operations

(face value Rs.10/- each]

i) Basic

ii) Diluted

Earnings per share from Continuing& Oiscontinued Operations

(face value Rs.10/- each)

i] Basic

ii) Diluted

31-03-2024 31-12-2023 31-03-2023 31-03-2024 31-03-2023

Audited" Unaudited Audited Audited” ougited

489*

2303

7195

375B

85

{160*)

l3Q5

16*

1811

5930

11447

(42S2

(4253,

{294i

i39S9]

3530SS

(B4986

268D69

264110

(19

9

(10

264100

26J ILID

( 10)

264300

35560

(1.11)

7S.38

75.38

74.2'7

74.27

3226 10765

1005 2192

4231 12957

2 123

58

(106)

2 115

231

1667

1321

7409

(3178

{3178

f,3178}

9

(3169

15

1S

(3154

{3169,

15

{31S4

35560

{D.B9)

(0.fl9)

0.00

0.00

(0.89)

(0.89

84

(2587,

735

(3382]

16339

5397

21736

4887 8939

860 536

J789 337

1263 75B2

3S5 828

1601 6806

4872 10009

15627 35037

{ 1330I)

(13302)

{294)

{13008}l

26 353070

(B4986)

26 268084]

(S356 255076]

(100

(7

(107

(3463

(3356|

{ 107)

{3463

35560

(0.9S)

{0.95)

0.01

0.01

(0.94)

(0.94]

25

9

34 |,

255110

255076

34

2SS110

35560

(210763)

{3.66]

(3.66)

75.39

75.39

20381

5464

25845

9331

T136

2797

7747

933

6902

8762

37608

11763}

1]

84

(11680

795

t12475

185

185

(12290

(1

{fl

(12298

{ 12290)

(8)

12298)

35560

(4G5874

(3.51)

(3.SG)

0.05

0.05

(3.46)

(3.46)



HMT MMfTED

No.-59, Bellary Roaă; BàrişläTöre.- 560 032

S ATsMExYOF CONsoLiDATED AUDTTED. rIxA»CIAL RE5UrzS

FØR THE.QUARTER ĂND YEAR £ßIDED 3IST MA ItCH 1021

CIN: L2923OKA1953GOI000748. [

(Ïh:in lakhš) [

primary Segment infomatlon forthe year ended 3lst March 2023

Three months ended Year ended

PärtiëuIarS

1.’Segment Revenue.

.Food Prõ«essing Machinery

Machinë. Toö|s

Proëjčts

Œ hers

T.otal

Lë/ss: inter S+'grneñt ReŸénu.e.

Tótal

2 Segment Results

Sèğrń.ent..Reśult before.Interest & Taxes

Foöd :Pro..c.essińg CVI.ächiüčrÿ

Mačhiné Tó:o.!s.

Pro/ejctś

Others'

Totãl

Less:

Interest Expenses

P..rofit/(ùoss) ôefore.Tax

3 Segment Assets

Food Processing Machinery

MachiT\e Tools

Projects

Œ hers

Unällõcated ánd:Discohtinued

4 .Seğmént.LiabilitïêŚ!

FÒod Prø.čëssirig Machinery

Machin’e:Toö\s

Pròjëcts

ğthers

!J nalIõ.cafed and Diș«ontinued

T.otal

31-03-2024 ,31-t2-20.23 : 3.1-03-2023 31-03-2024. 31-03-2D23

Audited’ Ü iaùdłted Aud\ted A»dïied• Audited

12S.8

2gS.7

494

34ó

zt9.5.3.

61

4892

(3502

.4’07

453

(144Z]

1811

(42s3)

24.40

1183

5563:

22’621

{Ïäo3

,60360

1937

564’Ž6

17’3’4

173’0’1

158166

2¥5SD4

94č

1Ș44

2-36

316

3338

112

3226

(26

(2086

111

48CI

(1511']

61197

1489

17945

'418992

5D1000

17.8.9

gȚ69

.Ș78

229

11165

Ä00

10765

Ș3

(1340

440

/179

(9z6

1601

(2587

696f4

2377 2źšB9

5513õ

2090

181¿7

421662

499928

360.5

997ó

175:9

1186

16520

181

16319

26

(8841

710

16Õ9

(6496

68Ö%

tl30Z

2t4Él

31319.

5563

J2622

(16.õ3

60360

1937

5642:6

1734

173Ô1

1S8166

235564

4355

1422’4

1415

805

20799

84

(6õ81)

Ș04

1316

(477B)

69b2’

:3i54

366%l

S%Äl

2À33%’

(Š98)

69614

2889

;5S13O

2090.

18157

421662

499918



SI.

A ASSETS

HMY UMFFED

NoS9, Bellary Road, Bangalore - 560 032

STATEMENTOF CONSOLIDATED AUDIYED FINAMCIAJ. R£5ULT5

AS AY 31ST MARCH 2024

CIN: L29230kAz953GOl000748

ParticularC

(a) Property, plant& equipment

(b) Capital work-Tn-progress

[c) Investment property

(d) rlnanacial Assets

Investments

Other Financial Assets

{e) Other Non current Assets

Sub total

CONSOUDATED STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Current Assets

(a) Inventories

(b) Financial Assets

Trade Receivables

Cash& Cash Equivalents

Bank balanes other tkan Cash& Cash Equivalents

other Finpncial Assets

(t) Current Tax Assets (net]

(d) Other Current Assets

Sub total

Non Current Assets held forsale

TOTAL ASSETS

B EQUITY& LIABILMES

1 Equity

(a) Equity share capital

(b) Other equity

Equity attr\butabte to Equity hotdws tifthe parent

(c) Non Controlling Interests

Total equity

2 Non-current liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilitias

Non Current Financial Uablllty

(b) Other Current 1iabilities

(c) Provisions

Employee Benefits.

|d} Deferred tax liability (net)

Sub total

Current liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities

Borr¢twfngs

Trade Payables

Total outstond/ng deer toMicro, smplt& Medium Enferperisefi

Total outstanding du.es of creditors other than Micro, Small& Me6/f/m Enterperices

(b) Other Financial Liabilities

(c) Other current liabitlties

(d) Provisions

Employee Benefits

Others

(e) CurrentTax Liabilities (net}

TOTAL LIABILITIES

TOTAL EQUIYY& LIABILITIES

(Rs in Iakhs|

Asat As at

4t-03-Z024 11-03-20Z3

Audited* Audhed

3864

331

169

J8

429

384

5195

11602

13390

3250

21461

4p5

748

3973

5A86B

296

60360

35560

(210763

{17S203

(175203

70

343Y

3507

102938

670

8864

5.6831

59709

2S97

370

77

2320S6

135563

60360

42D8

413

188

19

1714

376

6918

11780

18577

85S4

1S9SO

362

1577

4600

69614

3S560

(465874

{430314

91

3865

43

3989

372694

934

7Z62

50623

60461

2677

383

89S

495929

499928

69611



SI.

Note:

Place:

Dale:

HMT LIMITLU

No.59, Bellary Road, Bangalore - 56O 032

STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED AUDITED FINANCIAL RESULTS

FOR THE QUARTER AND YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024

Particulars

CIN: t29230KA1953GOI000748

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

A Operating activities

Profit/(loss) before taxYrom continuing operations

Profit/(loss) before taxfrom discontinued operations

Profit before tax

Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:

oepretiation and impairment ¢tf PPE, Investment Properties and Intangible Assets

lmpairement of Intangible assets

Proft on disposal of property, plant and equipment and Non Current Assets Held forSale (net]

GOI Liabilities waived off

Gram received from G0l

Finance income (including fair value change in financial instruments)

Finance cost (including fair value change in financial instruments)

Share of (Profi)t/Lpss of an asociate anda Joint venture

Working capital adjustments:

Movements in provisions

(Increase)/Decrease in trade and other receivables and prepayments

(Increase)/Decrease in inventories

Increase/(Decrease) in trade and other payables

I ncpme tax(paid)/reversed

Net cash flows from operating activities

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment and Non Current Assels held for sale

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Deposits with Banks

Interest received

Net cash fl¢tws used in investing activities

Financing activities

lnteresl Paid

Proceeds from borrowings (net)

Crant received from GOI

Repayment ofborrowings (net)

Net cash flows from/(used in) financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equiva(ents at the beginning of the year

Cash and ¢ash equivalents at year end

(Rs in lakhs] I

Year ended

31-3-2024 31-3-2023

Audited* Audited

{13302)

353070

339768

828

(23)

(269379)

(83747)

(1S36)

6806

1

(11680)

(11495)

933

844

{82)

(952)

6902

1

J2t0 (1095)

5540 1897

S 2905

565 10944

38 1080Z

(84677 10293)

23

(383,

(S511)

1473

(4398

(598

83747

(378

B2771

(6304}

9554

88

(S75)

(3S90)

1309

(2768}i

(682)

1041

359 l

7884

1670

9554I

I The above Results for the Quarter and year ended 31si March 2024 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee and approved by the Board at its Meeting

held on 9th August 2024.

As per the cCCA Approval, the operations of the subsidiary Company i.e. HMT batches Ltdoperations have been discontinued. Accordingly, the transactions

have been considered aS Discontinued Operations in accordance with IND AS 105.

Networth of the HMT G roup Stas bee n completely eroded. Considering the realisable val ue of the non-current assets helm for sale, support from Government

of India and other business plans, the Company hasprepared its financial statements on going concern basis and according|y, no adjustments are considered

necessary to the carrying value of its assets and Jiabilities.

Figures of the last quarter are the balancing figures between Audited figures in respect of the full year and the pU blished year-to-date figures Upto the third

quarter of the current fin ancial year.

6 Figures of previous period/ yegr's have been regrouped wherever necessary to conform with current period/ year's figures.

”Suttject co C&AG Review

Bangalore

August 9,2024

By order ofthe Board of Directors ”.

‘ ’” .‘i -

(Ra esh Kohli)

Chairman and Managing Director ”

(Addl. Charge)
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10

Place:

Date:

no, ss, oer›ary Ltoao, aangaiore sotiu>z

EXTRACT OF THE CONSOLIDATED AUDITED FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR THE QUARTER AND YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024

Particulars

1 Total income from Continuing Operations

CIN: L29230KA1953GOI000748

2 Netprofit/ (loss) for the period (before tax, exceptional items]

Net profit/ (loss) for the period before tax (after excepticinal items)

4 Net profit/ (loss) for the period after tax (after exceptional items)

Net Profit/(Loss) from oiscpntinued Operations

Total Comprehensive Income forthe period (comprising profit for the

period and other comprehensive income(net of tax))

7 Profit/(Loss) for the year attributable to:

Equily holder of the parent

Non-Controlling Interest

8 Other Comprehensive Income attributable to:

Equity holder of the parent

Non-Controlling Interest

Total Other Comprehensive income fortheyear attributable to:

Equity holder oJ the parent

Non-Controlling Interest

Paid up Equity Share Capital (face value of Rs,10/- each)

11 Other Equity

1Z Earnings Per Share Tram continuing operations

(face value of Rs.10/- each)

Basic:

Diluted

Earnings Per Share from discontinued operations

(face value of Rs.10/- each)

Basic:

Diluted•

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Three months ended Year ended

31-03-2024 31-12-2023 31-03-2023 31-03-2024 31-03-2023

Audited‘ Unaudited Audited Audited’ Audited

7195

t4252

(4253)

(3959)

268069

264100

264110

(10)

264100

35560

(1.11)

(t,11)

75.38

75.38

4231

(3178)

(3178)

(3178)

9

(3154)

(3169)

12957

(Z670)

21736

(1180 }

25845

(1t763}

(2587) (13302) (11680)

{3382) (13008) (12475)

26 268084 185

(3463) 255110

(3356) 255076

15 (107)

(3154)

35560

(0.89)

(0.89)

0.00

0.00

34

(3463) 255110

35560

(a.s5)

(0.95)

0.02

0.02

(12298)

(12290)

(8)

(12298)

35560 35560

(210763) (465874)

(3.66)

{3.66)

7S.39

7S.39

(3.51)

(3.51)

0.05

0.05

Note:

1. The above is an extract of the detailed format of Quarterly and yearly Financial Results filed with the Stock Exchanges under regulation 33 of SEBI

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Requlations, 2015. The lull format of the Quarterly and Yearly Financial Results are available on the

websites of Stock Exchange ofwww.nseindia.com and www.bseindia.com and on theCompany's website www.hmtindia.com

2. Figures o1 previous year have been regrouped wherever necessary.

* 5vbject to C&AGReview

Bangalore

August 9,2024

By order oJthe Board of Directors

Rajesh Kphli)

Chairman and Managing Director

(Addl. Charge)



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

TotheMembers ofHMT Limited -

Report on tbcAudit oftheStandalone Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

NSVM&
A S S 0 C I A T E S

C£ARTEREDA1C0JNTANTS

We have audited the stnndslone financial statements of I(MT Limited (“the Company”), which

colrprise the balance sheet as at3 l" March 2tl24, and the statement of Profit and Loss (including

Other Comprehensive Income) fortheyear theta ended 3.1 March 2024, the Statement of Changes ia

Equity rind the Statement of Cash Flows fortheyear ended on that date ated notes to the standalone

financial statements, includinga summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,except

for the basis of Qualified Opinion section of our report, the aforesaid standalone financi‹il st‹iteinents

give tire information required by the Act in the manner so required and givea true and feir view in

confoi inity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, in the case of

(a) Standalone Balance Sheet, of’the state of affairs of the standalone as at 31" March,2023 and

(b)Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), of the profit for the

year ended on that date.

(c) Standalone Statement of Changes inEqti ily, the changes fortheyear ended on that date.

(d) Standalone Cash fiow statement of the flow of cash in the Company foryear ended on that

date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1. Food Processing Machinery Unit,A urangabsd

As per information rind explanation given to us with regard to Inventory valuation as stated in

Note No.2 (ii) (j) stock of raw material, it is valued by adopting Weighted Average Cost

method, However, in the inventory sttitomi:nt provided for verification pui'pose, t!ie

correctness of stock items rates and therefore, cost could not be verified due to absence of

sufficient and appropriate audit evidence. Owing tothenature of Company's records and in

the absence of sufficicnt audit ev idence, we are unable to asccrtain if there is material

departure from the Weighted Averat;e Cost Method adopted by the compatiy. We arc also

unable to ascertain its consequent impact, if atiy, on the Standalone Ind US t\nancia1

statements.

2. Auxiliary

( fin - receipt of balance Confirmations with regard to Trade Receivables, Trade Payahles.

eitherCurrent Assets and Other Current liabilities and hence, iinpact of the snine on the

" p andalone financial statements cannot be quantified.

No. 63/\, 1sI Floor, Above Canara BanL, Railway Faral[e[ Road, Kumara Park ¥/est. Bangalore 560 02g. India, www.nsvin.in

IT ‹9180 4150 6054/5t6/ 1.43?46057/58.1E teat(e§a vz.i



(b) The Company records rental income generated from thebuildings situated on the land which

is not recorded in the books of acGOUntS Of the Company. On examination of records

produced for verification, the status of the land and it's ownership is in the name ofHMT

Limited.

(c) Ind AS 40 requires the Company to obtaina fair valuation report of tha investment properties

froma registered valuer as defined under Rule2 of Companies (Registered Valuers and

Valuation) Rules, 2017, However, we observe that the Company hasnotcomplied with the

above requirement as prescribed by Ind AS-40.

3. Corporate Head Office and Company asa whole

(a) Non - receipt of balance Confirmations with regard to Trade Receivables, Trade Payables,

Other Current Assets and Other Current liabilities and hence, impact of the same on the

standalone financial statements cannot be quantified,

(b) IND AS 40 defines Investment Property as property held to earn rentals or for capital

appreciation or both. It is observed that Corporate Head Office derives rental income partly

from building (owned by the entity) which is not classified as Investment property in the

standalone financial statements,

(c) ind AS 40 requires the Company toobtaina fair valuation report of the investment properties

froma registered valuer as defined under Rule2 of Companies (Registered Valuers and

Valuation) Rules, 2017. However, we observe that the Company hasnotcomplied with the

above requirement as prescribed by Ind AS-40,

(d) Ind-AS 109 requires an entity to apply expected credit loss (ECL) model formeasurement

and recognition of impairment loss. However, aspertheinformation and explanation given to

us no ECL matrix was prepared for the period under audit for creating provision for loss

allowance. Hence, we are unable to ascertain its impact, if any, on the Standalone Ind AS

financial statements.

(e) As per Ind AS-109, the Company hastorecognize loss allowance for expected credit losses

ona financial asset, In the instant case, we observe ttiat the Company haslong outstanding

receivable from HMT Machine Tools Limited in respect of whioh the Company hasnot

recorded any expected credit losses. In our opinion as HMT Machine Tools Ltd is incurring

continuous losses and has a negative net worth, the ability of the Company torecover the

amount receivable fom HMT Machine Tools Limited remains doubtful.

(f) As par Schedule III of Companies Act, 2013, trade payables include all amounts due on

account of purchase of goods and services received in the normal course of business. In the

instant case, we observe that an amount ofRs 1510,99 lacs which is presently disclosed as

Accrued expenses under the head Other Current Liabilities must be disclosed under Trade

Payables. Further, tire Company must provide ageing analysis for the amount disclosed under

thehead Accrued Expenses.

(g) We draw your attention to Note No.53 wherein the Company has stated that it has no

transactions with struck off companies under section 248 of The Companies Act, 2013.

owever, Company hasnotprovided appropriate audit evidence to establish that they do not

ve such transactions,



We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SA's) specified under section

143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described

in the Auditor's Responsibilities fot the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our

report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code ofEthics issued by the

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to

our audit of the Standalone financial statements under theprovisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and

theRules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these

requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to providea basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key Audit Masters arethose masters that, in our professional judgement, were ofmost significance in

our audit of the standalone financial statements for the financial year ended 31" March 2024. Thèse

matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone finaneial statements, and in

forming our opinion thereon, and we do not providea separate opinion thereon, and we do not provide

a separate opinion on thèse matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit

addressed the matter is provided inthat content.

We have determined the matters described below tobe thekey aUdit matters to be communicated in

our report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the

audit of the standalone financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these

matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performann of procedures designed to respond to our

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements. The results of

our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the

basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying standalone financial statements.

Key Audit Matters How our audlt addressed tbe ltey matter

Revenue Recognition from Operating Leases as per IND AS 116 - Leaves

The company cams rental income Tom leasing Our Audit Procedures include the following —

out properties on a commercial and residential P We have obtained the information such

basis. as Number of residential quartets and

As the rental income earned formsa significant shops, occupancy, Tenant name, Date Of

part of the total income earned, the matter is occupancy and vacancy,

considered as key audit matter. 4 We have verified lease agreements on

sample basis

4 We have verified journal entries passed

with the rental income to be recognized

as per lease agreements.

4 We have verified the impact of Ind AS

116 on therent received by the entity.

Revenue recognized from Sale ofwatches

The entity is engaged in sale of watches and earns Our AUdit Procedures include the following —

a major part of revenue. P We have obtained an understanding of

And hence, considered this asa key audit matter. how the invoicing for the sales made at

the showrooms and sales made through

e-Commerce website is done.

P We were provided with the transaction

log in the e-commerce website against

• which theinvoices ate generated.

• 4 We have obtained an understanding



Loan given to HMT Machine Tools Limited

The entity had given loan to it's wholly owned Our

subsidiary HMT Machine Tools Limited havinga

balance of Rs. 30,582.41 lakhs.

The amount given as loan to this entity formsa

major part of Current Assets and hence,

considered asa key audit matter.

Inventory valuation

Inventory is considered asa key audit matter as Our

the valuation and determination o( its impairment

require usage of seveml key assumptions and

estimates that may havea material impact on the

Standalone Financial Statements.

EmphaslB OfMatter Paragraph

based on recording the income from sale

of watches in the books ofaccounts.

4 The sale of watches recorded in books

was selected on sample basis and verified

against the invoices genemted.

4 We have checked thesequential order for

the invoices generated against the sales

made.

4 We have obtained an explanation in

respect to the cancelled invoices.

Audit Procedures include the following —

4 We have obtained the Minutes of

Meeting of Board Committee and Board

resolutions in respect to the approval of

loan given to HMT Machine Tools Ltd.

4 We have verified the rate of interest at

which theloan was given.

4 We have verified the sources of funds for

the loan given.

4 We have verified the reasons for which

theloans were given.

4 We have verified the impact of Section

185 and Section 186 of Companies Act,

2013 on such loan given.

4 We were provided with the interest

workings in respect of interest income

recorded on such loan.

Audit Procedures include —

4 We have obtained the Inventory

Valuation reports from themanagement.

4 We have obtained the Quantitative details

in respect of type of Inventory held by

the entity.

4 We have obtained an understanding on

the accounting policy followed by the

entity to measure the Inventory on the

closing date.

4 We have analyzed and verified the

disclosure requirements as per Ind AS -2

and Schedule 111 of Companies Act,

2013.

(a) We draw you attention to Note No, 49 of Standalone lnd AS financial statements fOF the

°^qq financial year ended 31st March, 2024 wherein HMT Limited has invested Rs.15 lakh

(S0% ofequity shares) comprising 1,50,000 equity shares of Rs.IO each fully paid up in

Sudmo HMT Process Engineers (India) Ltd., Bengaluru (Mls. Sudmo - HMT). M/s.



t, pSSO
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Sudmo-HMT hasnooperations. The Board of HMT Ltd has approved (February 2020/

July 2021) forclosers of the defunct joint venture company (Mls. Sudmo- HMT) and

submitted the closure proposal to Administrative Ministry (July 2021) forapproval.

We draw you attention to Note No. i0 of Standalone Ind AS financial statements for the

financial year ended 31st March, 2024 wherein HMT Limited has invested Rs.20.84 lakh

(39% ofequity shares) comprising 20,84,050 equity shares of Rs.1 each fully paid up in

Gujarat State Machine Tools Corporation Ltd., Bhavanagar (M/s. GSMTC). TheBoard of

HMT Ltd gave (March 2021) in prÎnciple approved for liquidation of M/s. GSMTC and

issued the consent letter to Gujatat Industriel Investment Corporation Limited (CillC),

GIIC approved (September 2021) liquidation of M/s. GSMTC atid submitted (October

2021) the proposal to Industries& Mines Department, HMT Ltd submitted (April 2022)

theliquidation proposal to Administrative Ministry.

We draw you attention to Note No. 51 ofStandalone Ind AS financial statements for the

financial year ended 31st March, 2024 wherein HMT Limited has invested 30,00,000

equity shares ofl Naira each fully paid up in Nigeria Mchine Tools Limited, Nigeria

(Ws. NMTL). The Board of HMT Ltd gave (February 2020) approval for divestment of

stake in Mls. NMTLandsought approval from Administrative Ministry,

(d) We draw your attention to Note No. 3C- Additional Information (d)&(e), Note No. 22-

Additional Information and Note No. 34 (ii) of Standalone Ind AS financial statements

for the financial year ended3 1st March, 2024 relating to transfer of land to Raman

Research Institute and Government of Uttarakhand (transferee) wherein the Company

(transferor) has received entire sale consideration and has given the possession of the land

in the earlier years resulting in performance of contract by both the parties and

consequently provision for tax has been provided by the Company ofRs.980 Lakhs.

However, therecognition of profit/ loss on transfer of land will be considered in the year

of registration of sale deed.

Our opinion on 1e above masters is not modifiod.

Otber /Ÿtntters

1. The previous year figures in the financial statements of the company were audited by SSB &

Associates whose report has been furnished to us in which the auditor have provideda

qualified opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements as on3 l -03-2024. The Qualified

opinion given by the previous auditor is given aS “Annexure A”,

2. We did not audit the financial statements/ information of Food Processing Machinery Unit,

Aurangabad included in these Standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company whose

financial statements/financial infonnation reflect total assets of Rs. 2440.32 lakhs as at Mamh

31,2024 and total revenues of Rs. 3,682.11 lakhs for the year ended on that date. The

financial statement information of this standalone has been audited by the branch auditor

Mls R.K. Muley & Co,Chartered Accountants, Aurangabad whose report has been furnished

to us, and our opinion in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect

Of this unit, are based solely on the report of such standalone auditor.

3. The physical share certificates of 26,08,99,037 equity shares and 4,43,00,000 preference

shares of HMT Machine Tools Limited whose cost is Rs.26,089.90 lakhs and Rs.44,300.00

• lakhs respectively are not in possession of theI ompany asat 31" March 2024.



Information Other than theFinancial Statements rind Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information

comprises the information included in the Annual report but does not include the standalone financial

stateincnts and our auditor's report thereon,

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does hot cover the other inforrrintion en‹J we do

not express any form ot’ assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our Responsibility is to read the

other inforiiiatioii and, in doing so, consider wliethei’ the othcr information is materially inconsistent

with the standalone financial statements, or our knowleclgc obtained in the audit or otherwise :ippears

to be materially misstated. IU based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there isa

material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. \Ve have nothing

to report in this regard.

Rcsyonsibilities of Management fortheFinancial St8tements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible fur the matters stated in sectiOlJ 134(5) of the

Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial

statements thnt givea trtic and fair view of the financial position, financi8I performance, of the

Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the

accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibilip also includes

maintenance of adequate accounting recoi ds in accordance with the prox'isions of the Act for

safeguarding of the assets of the Company rind for preventing and detecting frauds and other

irregularities: selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; nicking judgments and

estimates lhat are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation rind maintenance of adequate

internal financial controls, thnt were operating effectivoly for ensuring the accuracy and completeness

of the accounting records, rclevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial

statements that gtvea true and fair view and arefree from material misstatement, whether due to fraud

lii pi'eparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the

Company’s ability to continue asa going concern, disclosing, as apps icable, matters related to going

concern arid using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to

liquidate the Company ortocease operations, or hns no realistic alternative but to do so.

Thèse Board of Directurs are alsoi esgonsible for overseei:g t|e o•ompany’s financinl reporting

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit oftlie Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether thestandalone financ int statements as

a wholc arefree from niaterial misstatemenl, whether due to fraiid or error, and to issue an auditor's

report that includes our opinion. Rcasonable assurance isa high ievel of asstlrnnce but is not a

gnarantee that an audlt COnducted in accordance with SAs will always detecta material misstateinent

when it exists. lvtisstatements con arise from Grand or error and are considered material if, individually

or in the aggregate, they could reaso»ably be expected to infi ucnce the econoin ic deeisions of users

taken on the basis of thèse standnlone financial statements.

'' part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

p d ssionat scepticism throughout thc audit. We also:



• Identify and assess the risks of material iii isstatement of the standalone financial stateiiients,

w‘liether due to fraud or error, design and perfoi in rindit procedures responsive to those risks,

and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to providea basis for our opinion.

The risk of not detectinga material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one

resulting from error, as fraud may involve coliusion, forgery, intentionai oui issions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control reievant to the nudit in or dsr to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the

Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the

coiTipany has adequate internal financing COiltfOlS S)5tem in place and the operating

effectiveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures tirade by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis Of

accounting and, based on the audit évidence obtaincd, whethera material uncerlaftity exists

related to events or conditions that may cast signlficant doubt on the company's ability to

continue nsa t,oing concem. lf wc conclude that ri inaterial iineertainty exists, we are rcquired

to drn\Y iittention in our aUdilor's report to the related disc iosures in the standaloiie financial

stateinents or, if such disclosures are inadeqtiate, to inodify our opinion. Our conclusions arc

bnsed on the audit eviderice obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future

events or conditions may cause the company to cease to continue asa going concert.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure atid content of the standalone financial statements,

including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represerlt the

underlying transactions and events ina manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regai ding, amoiig other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including nny significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance witha statenlent that wc have complied wilh relevant

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicale with them all relationships and

other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulntory Requirements

1- As required by the Compaiiics (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the

Gentml Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act,

20.13, we give in the “AnnexureB”a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs3 and4 of

tlic Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by SectionI 43(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and oblained n!l the in formation and explanations which to the best of Our

knowledge and belief were necessary for tlte purposes of our audit.

b. In otir opinion, except for the matter described in the Basis foi Qualified opinion paragraph

•.’ -' <-, ibove, proper books ot‘account as required by law have been kept by the Company sofar as it

'‘ ' 'ir appears from our examination of those books.



The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, dealt with by this Report are in

agrceinent with the books ofaccount.

d. In our opinion, except forthe matter described in the Basis for Qufilitied opinion. the aforesaid

standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section

133 of the Act, read with Rule7 oftlic Coinpdnies (Accounts) Rules, 20.1 .

e. The entity isa government entity and in the terms of notification reference No.G.S.R. 463(E)

dated 05"' June 2015 issued by Ministry of Corporate A flairs for Government Companies, sub-

section (2) of Section 164 of Companies Act, 2013 regarding disqual ific8tion for appointment

of director is not applicable, Hence, Comment onthesame does not arise.

Wit)t respect to the adequacy of ths internal financidl controls over financial reporting of the

Company and theoperating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in

“Annexure C”.

g. With respect to the other inatters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with

Rule 1.1 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 20.14, in our opinion and to the best of

our information orrd according to the explanations given to us:

i. The company lias disclosed the iiiipact of pending litigations on its financial position in its

standalonc fiiiancial statements - Refer Note 32 IO the financiâJ St8tClT10I1lS.

ii. J‘lie company didnothave any long term contracts as required under the aggIio°abIe law or

accounting standards and also not entered into any derivative contracts, accarding]y no

provision is required to be made inrespect to p ateria\ foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were requircd to be transferred to the Investor Education

mid Protection Fund by theCompany,

iv.

a) The Munugement ofthecompany hasrepresented that, to the best of’ their knowledge

and belief, thnt the Company hasnotadvanced or loaned or invested any funds (either

from borrowed funds or share premium orany other sources or kind of funds) to or in

any other person(s) or entity(les), including foreign entities (“Intemiediaries”), with the

understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,

whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest iii other persons or entities identified in

any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”} or

provide any guarantee, security or theI ike on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

b) The Management ofthecompany hasrepi‘esented that, to the best of their knowledge

and belief, otiier than that as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, that the Company

lins not received any funds from any person(s) or entity(res), including foreign entities

(“Funding Parties”), with the undei'standing, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,

thai the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly tend or invest in other’ persons or

entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party

(“U ltiinate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or theI ike on behalf of

the Ultiiiiate Beneficiaries.

Based on audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the

circumstances, nothing has come toournotice that has caused as to believe that the

representations under sub-clause (i) and (i i) of Rule (e), us provided under (a) and (b)

above, contain any matcrial misstatement.

The Company hasnotdeclared or paid any dividend during the year cnded 31si March

2024, and thercfore, coinpi iance with section 123 of the Componies Act, 2013 is not

appl icable.



vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the company
software for maintaining its books of accouztt which hasa feature

(edit log) faci1lty and the same hasnotbeen operated throughout

transactions recorded inthe software.

has used an accounting

of recording audit trail

the year for all relevant

3. As required by Section 143(5) of the Act, our submissions are as under:

We give in the 'Annexure D",a statement on the compliance to Directions

Comptroller and Audit Geneml ofIndia.

forN S V M & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm registration number: 0100725

G C S Mani

Par0ier

Membership No: 036508

UDlN: 24O36508BKDEVC1090

Place: Bengaluru

Date: 09-08-2024

issued by the



ilMT Limited

AnnexureA toIndependent Auditor's Report

NSVM&
A S S 0 C I A T E S

füARTlFEDACt0UNTANTS

The Annexure A referred to in the lndependent Auditor's Report to the Mombcrs ofHM'l’ Limiled (‘the

Company’) fortheyear ended 3) Marc)i 2024, thequalÏfied opinion given on the previous year figures in

the finnncial slaiemcnts as on 31 March 2024 is as follows

1. Food Processing Mucbiner3 Unit, Aurangobnd:

As perinformation and explanation given to us witi regard to Inventory valuation as stated in Note No.2

(ii) (j) stock of raw material, it is valued by adopting Weighted Average Cost method. However, inthe

inventory statement provided tor verification purpose, the correctness of stock items rates could not be

verified due to absence of sufficient and appropriate audit evidence. Owing tothcnaturc of Company's

records and in the absence of sufficient audit evidence, we are unable to ascertain if there is matcrial

departure from the Weighted Averagc Cost Method adopted by the company. We are also unable to

ascertain its consequent impact, ifany, on the Standalone Ind AS financial statements.

2, Aiixiliaty Business Division, Bengaluru

Consequent to Non-receipt of confirmation of balances of Debtors and Creditors, the impact on financial

slatemcnts cannot be quantified.

3. Corporate Head Office nnd Company ass svhole:

a. Non-confirmation of balance5 of Trade Receivables, Loans and Advances, Tra‹le Payables and

Other Current Liabilities and its consequential impact if any on the Standalone Ind AS financial

statemenls cannot be quantified.

b. The Company hasnotprovido•d status quo of Nigeria Machine ToO15 Ltd. and Gujarat State

Machine Tools Corporation Ltd as on 3l
S
'March, 2023. Consequently, we fire unable to comment

on theimpact o1’the same on Standalone Ind AS financial statements.

c. We draw your attention to Note No.53 wherein theCompany hasstated that it has rio transactions

with struck off companies under section 248 of’ The Companies Act, 2013. I3oz'ever, Company

hasnotprovidcd appropriate audrt evidence to establish that they do not have such transactions.

N»t 63/1, 1st floor, Above Canada Bank, Railway Pa‹sIIet Road, Kvmzra Part I//est, Ban8zIote 560 020. India. www.nsvm.in
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d. Company for Impairment on Financial Assets as per lnd-AS 109 has toapply expected credit loss

(ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss. However, as per the

information and eKplanation given to us no ECL matrix was prepared for the period under audit

for creating provision for loss allowance. Hence, we are un8ble to ascertain its impact, if any, on

the Standalone Ind AS financial statements.

forN S V M & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm registration number: 0l0072S

Membership No: 036508

UDIN: 24036508BKDEVC1090

Place: Bengaluru

Date: 09-08-2024



(i)

HMT Limited

AnnexureB totheIndependent Auditor's Report

NSVM&
A S S 0 C IA T E S

CMART2REDAtt0tNTANTS

The AnnexureB referred to in the Independent Auditor's Report to theMemben ofHMT Limited ('the

Company’) for the year ended 21 March 2024, we repon that!

a)

)

*MAC .

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full quantitative details and the

situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B} The Company does not own any Intangible Assets and hence, the reporting under paragraph

3(i)(a}(B) is not applicable to the company.

b) According totheinfornation and explanations given to us, the Property, Plant and Equipment are

physically verified once in three years which is considered reasonable considering the size of the

company.

The physical verification of Fixed Assets in Auxiliary Business Division was carried out during

the FY 2022-23 and the Tractor division which is discontinued and merged with Auxiliary

Business Division was carried out during the fiY 2016-17. No material discrepancies were found

inthecase of Property, Plant and Equipment ofAuxiliary Business Division.

As we we not provided with the latest Physical verification report of Tractor Division (merged

with Auxiliary Business Division, Bengaluru), we are unable to comment on thediscrepancy, if

any, on Property, Plant and Equipment ofTractor Division.

Fixed Asset Verification report was not provided forverification in case of Food Processing Unit,

Aurangabad and we areunable tocomment on thediscrepancy, if any, on the Property, Plant and

Equiprrient of Food Processing Unit, Airangabad.

The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where theCompany is the

lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favor of the lmsee), as disclosed under

Property, Plant and Equipment in the financial statements are held in the name oftheCompany

except inthe following cases:

Description of Gross Held in Whether held Period held Reason fotnot

Property carrying name of bypromoter, being held in the

value director, or name ofthe

their relative Company

oremployee

Leasehold

Land from Rs. 5,00,000 CIDCO No

CnCo

Thesaid tand is

encroached, and the

matter is pending

with theHonorable

High Court

63/1, 1st floor, Above Cenara Bank, Railway Parallel Road, Xvmara Park \\lest, Bangalore 560 020, India, www.asvm.in

lT+91804150D054lDWl4Z24O057N8l eopee i



(ii)

d) The Company hasnotrevalued its Property, Plant and Equipment or lntangible Assets during the

year.

e) According to the information and explanations given by the management, no proceedings hns

been initiated or are pending against the Company forholding any benami property under the

Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and the niles made thereunder.

a) As explained tO us, iI4veiitoJ of the company hasbeen physically verified during the year by the

management zt rcgular irtcrxals.î oar opinion, täe frequcnct ofsacL xcrificali0f! Ït fCüS0llablc.

No material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us by Use management and based on out’

examination of the books of accounts in the normal course of audit, the Company hasnotbeen

sanctioned working capital l iinits in excess of five crore rupees in abgfcgate, from bank or

financial institutions on the basis of secui'ity or’ current assets. Thus, paragraph 3(i i)(b) of the

Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iii) According to the information and eKpianati0ll given to us and based on the audit procedures

performed by us. during the year the Company hasnotmade any investments in, nor provided any

loans or advances in nature of loans or stood guarantee or provided security to any entity. Thus,

paragraph 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(A) According tothe information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures

performed by us, during the year the Company hasnotprovided any loans or advances in

nature of loans, or stood guarantee or provided security to its subsidiaries, joint vcniurcs and

associates other than that disclosed below:

Particulürs

Aggregate amount during

the year

- Subsidiaries

Associate

Joint Venturc

Balance outstanding as at the

year end:

- Subsidiaries

- Associate

- Point Venture

Advances in

Loans natuie of Guarantee Security

Loan

Ra.31l 1.98 Rs.154.31

lakhs lakhs

Rs.3.40 lakhs

Rs.30582.4\ Rs.1599.53 -

lakhs lakhs

- Rs.3.40 lakhs - -

(B) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on lhe audil procedures

performed by us, during the year the Company hasnotprov'ided any loans or advances in nature

of loans, or stood guarantee or provided security to any parties other than subsidiaries, Associate

c,, and joint venture.



>)

)

According to the information and explanations giYen to us and based on the audit procedures

conducted by us, we are of the opinion that the investments made, guarantee provided and the

terms and conditions of loans granted by the Company areprima facie not prejudicial to the

interest of the company.

c) According to the information and explanation provided to us and based on the audit procedures

conducted by us, the principal and interest of the loans granted by the Company, therepayment of

loan is ovef due as on 31" March 2024. The details for which fire as below:

Name ofEntity Amount (Rs.) Due dale Extent of Remarks,

Delay ifany

HMT Machine Tools Rs.506.99 lakhs 31 -03-2019 1827 days -

Limited

HMT Machine Tools Rs.1,345.47 lakhs 31 -03-2020 1461 days -

Limited

HMT Machine Tools Rs.1,640.73 lakhs 31-03-2021 1096 days

Limited

HMT Machine Tools Rs.1,828.65 lakhs 3l -03-2022 731 days -

Limited

In respect of advances in the nature of loans, there is no stipulation as to repayment of principal

and interest amount relating to such advances and hence, we are unable to comment onthesame.

d) According to the information and explanation provided to tis and based on the audit procedures

conducted by us, in respect of loans and advances inthenature o( loans, there is an amount which

is overdue for more than ninety days as at the balance sheet date in respect of loans given it to it's

wholly owned subsidiary i.e., HMT Machine Tools Limited as indicated in be!ow table-

Number of Principal

Cases Amount

Overdue

Interest Total Overdue Remarks

Overdue (if any)

HMT Machine Rs,30,582.41 Rs.5,321 lakhs Rs.35,903.41 -

Tools Limited lakhs lakhs

According to the information and explanation provided to us, there is no loan given falling due

during the year, which hasbeen renewed orextended or granted Fresh loans to se«le the over dues

of existing loans given tothesame p8rty,

According to the information and explanation provided to us and based on the audit procedures

conducted by us, the Company hasgranted loan or advance innature of loan to any parties under

a agreement which does notstipulate the terms and period of repayment which areasfollows

All Parties Promoters Related Pa

Aggregate of loans/advances in

nature of loan

- Repayable on Demand

- Agreement does not specify any -

tnrms or period of repayment

naNre ofloan to the total loans

Rs.3,266.29 lakhs -

Percentage of loans/advances in 9.86%

Rs.3,266.29

9.86%



(iv) In our opini0fl 8nd according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has

complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act with respect to the loans, deposit and

investments made.

The Company hasnotaccepted any deposit or has any amounts which aredeemed tobe deposits to

which theprovisions of Section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act rules

framed thereunder and the directions issued by the RBI are applicable. Hence paragraph3 (v) of

CARO is not applicable to the company.

The Central government has not prescribed maintenance of cost records under section 148(I) of the

Act for any of the products/services of the Company. Thus paragraph 3(vi) of CARO is not

applicable to the Company.

e) According totheinformation and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of

the records of the Company, amounts deducted/secured in the books of account in respect of

undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income-tax,

Duty of Customs, Goods and Services tax, Cess and other material statutory dues have not

generally been regularly deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate

authorities though there have been serious delays in case of filing GST Returns and payment of

taxe8.

According to the information and explanations give to us, no undisputed amounts payable in

respect of Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income tax, Duty ofCustoms, Goods and

Services tax, cess and any other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2024

except the following, fora period of more than six months from thedate they became payable —

SI.No Nature of Statute

1 Greater Hydembad Municipal Pmperty Tax

Corporation

2 Employee State Insurance Employee State Insurance

3 VAT/CST Interest onVAT/CST

4 GST Interest on GST

5 Employee Provident Fund Employee Provident Fund

6 Bruhat Bengaluru Property Tax

_Mahanagara Palike

7 Bxcise Duty

Statement of Undisputed Dues

Nature ofDues

Rxcise Duty

Amount

(Rs. In Lakhs)

723.65

2.34

1.24

0.16

41.89

19.98

59.14

In the case of Food Processing Machinery Unit, Aurangabad, there were lapses in collection of

TCS, non-deduction of TDS and short deduction of TDS. The amount of undisputed statutory

dues arising from such cases is not quantifiable,

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures

conducted by us, there are no dues of income tax, Goods and Service Tax, custom duty, and cess

which have not been deposited of account of any dispute other than that stated below:



Statement of Disputed Dues

Nameofthe Nature of Amount Period to which Forum where the Remarks,

statute Dues (I) the amount dispute is ifany

relates pendinji

Haryana Local Haryana 486.17 From 2005 to Honoumble High -

Area Local Area 2017 Court of Punjab

Development Wvelopment andHaryana

Tax Ordinance, Tax

2000

GST GST under 62.72 For the year Appeiate -

GST

Appeal 2019-2020 Tribunal

before

Tribunal

GST under 25.35 For the year GST Department -

Assessment 2020-2021

Professional Professional 0,04 For the year Professional Tax -

Tax Tax 2023-2024 Department

Employee Provident l2l0,4g Various yean Employee -

Provident Fund Fund Provident Fund

Appellate

Tribunal

(viii) Based on ouraudit procedure and on the information and explanation given to us by the management,

no transaction has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments

under theIncome Tax Act, 1961.

(a) Based on our audit procedure and on the information and explanation given by the management,

we are of the opinion that the company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other

borrowing to its lender other than that stated below:

Nature of Name of

Borrowing lender

including debt

. securities

Government of Government of

India Loan India

(Interest Free)

dated

21.01.2017

Government of Government of

India Loan India

(Interest Free)

dated

16.02.2017

Government of Government of

India Loan India

(Interest Free)

dated

29.04.2017

Amount notpaid on due date

Rs.6,073.60 lakhs

Rs.6,073.60 lakhs

Rs.6,073.60 lakhe

Rs.6,073,60 lakhs

Rs.6,073,60 lakhs

Rs.4,800.00 lakhs

Rs.4,800.00 lakhs

Rs.4,800.00 lakhs

Rs.4,800.00 lakhs

Rs.4,800.00 lakhs

Rs.l,958.00 lakhs

Rs.1,958.00 lakhs

Rs.1,958.00 lakhs

Rs.1,958.00 lakhs

Rs.1,958.00 lakhs

sue

sue

sue

sue

sue

sue

sue

sue

sue

sue

Sug

since 21.01.2018

since 21.01.2019

since 21.01.2020

since 21.01.2021

since 21.0).2022

since 16.02.20t8

since 16.02.2019

since 16.02.2020

since 16.02.2021

since 16.02,2022

since 29.04.2018

since 29.04,2019

since 29.04.2020

since 29.04.2021

since 29.04.2022

No of

days of

delay or

unpaid

2261 days

1896 days

) 63I dgys

1165 days

800 days

2233 days

1870 days

1505 days

1139 days

774 days

2163 days

1798 days

1432 days

)067 days

702 days



‹)

(xii)

(O

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us by the management, lheCompany i5

not declared as willful defaulter by any bank orFinancial lnstitulion or other leaders.

(c) According to the intormation and explanation given to us by the management, theCompany has

notobtained any term loan during theyear and hence comment on thesame does nut arise.

(d) According to the information and explznatiorts given to us and on an overa!I exo»inction où the

dbl6rGc ShCct 0f UC GOiTlpüny, We fep0rt tLüt n0 fUrtdS rüiSzJ 0t sh0r(•IeFn1 bÂStS t1ase deert lJScd

tor long-tenn purposes by the company.

(c) According to the information and explanalions given lo us and on an overall examination of the

balance sheet of the company/ examination of the cash flow stateincnt of the Company, we report

that the company hasnottaken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the

obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures as defined under Companies Act, 2013.

According to the infonnalion and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, z'e

report that the company hasnotraised loans during the year on the pledge of sccuritics held in its

subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.

(a) According to the information and explanation givcn to us and hasod on Budit procc‹Jur

performed, no money was raised by the city of puh]ic issue/follow-on-ot*lfir (including debt

in5truments).

(b) According to theinfonnation and explanations given to us and on the basis of’ our examination of

the records of the Coiiipany, the Company hasnotmade any preferential allotment or private

placement of shares or fully or partly convenible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause

3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) Based upon audit procedui'e performed and information and explanation given by the

management, we report that no fraud by the company or any fraud on the coinpany has been

noticed or reported during theyear.

(b) Based upon nudit procedure performed and information and explanation given by the

management, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act hasbeen filed

by us or by other auditors of the Company.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the

company during the year.

The company is not a Nidhi Co. and therefore clause 3(ix) of” the ordcr is mot applicable to the

company.

Inouropinion, all transactions with the related parties entered into by the Company during the year

arc in compiiance with sectioni 77 and section 188 of the Companies Act of 2013 and thedc‹aiIs

thereof leave been discloscd in the Financial Statement as required by the Accounting standards and

companies Act, 2013.



‹xiv›
(a) In our opinion, the Company hasan internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature

of its business.

(b) We wete unable to obtain Internal Audit Reports of the to branches i.e., Auxiliary Business

Division, Bengaluru and Food Processing Machinery Unit, Aurangabad, hence theInternal Audit

Reports have notbeen considered by us. In case of Corporate Head office, We have obtained amd

considered the Internal Audit Reports.

(xv) On the basis of the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion during the year the

company hasnotentered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with

its directors and hence provisions pf section 192 of theCompanies Act, 2013 arenotapplicable to the

Company.

(xvi)

(a) According to the information and explanation given to us and in our opinion, the Company is not

required to be registered under Section 45-IA oftheReserve Bank ofIndia Act, 1934.

(b) Based on the audit procedure performed, the Company has notconducted any Non-Banking

Financial or Housing Finance activities as per the Reserve Bank ofIndia Act, 1934,

(c) Based in audit procedure performed, the company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as

defined in the regulations made bytheReserve Bank ofIndia.

(d) Based in audit procedure performed, the Company oranyofthecompanies in the group areCore

investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made bytheReserve Bank ofIndia.

(xvii) The Company hasnotincurred any cash losses in the financial year and in the preceding financial

year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly clause 3(xviii)

is not applicable.

(xix) According to theinformation and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,

ageing and expected dates of realization of fiiuncid assets and payment of financia) liabilities, other

information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the 8oard of Directors and

management plans, we are of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit

repori that company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and

whenthey fall due withina period of one year fromthebalance sheet date.

(xx)

(a) The company does not have unspent amount in respect Of other than ongoing projects in the

financial year in compliance wlth second proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135

(b) ln respect of ongoing projects, the company hastransferred unspent amount toa Special Account,

withina period of 30 days from theend ofthefinancial year in compliance with Soc.135(6) of the

said Act, as per the details given below:



Financial Year Amount unspent on Amount Transferred Amount Transferred

CSR activities for to Special Account after the due date

"On going Projects” within 30 days from (specify the date of

the end of the deposit)

Financia! Year

(a)

2023-2024

forN S V M & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm registration number: 0100725

(b)

27,BO,OOO

Partner

Membership No: 036508

UDIN: 24036S08BKDEVC1090

Place: Bengaluru

Date: 09-08-2024

(c)

27,80,000

(d
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Reports on Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Annexure -C totheIndependent auditor's report of even date on the financial statements of“HMT

LIiHlTED” on thefinancial statements for the year envied 3) Mn rcli 2024,

Repoit oii thü Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) or’ Su b-section3 of Section 143 of

the Companies Act, 2913 (lierein referred as “the Act”)

\Ve have audited the internal financial conlrols over financial reporting of “LI M"I’ Limited” as of Ivtarch

31, 2024, inconjunction With our audit of the Standalone financial statements forthe heat ended on that

Management's ResponsibÎlity for Internal Financial Controle

The management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial control based on the

internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential

components of internal conlrol stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of lnternal Financial Controls Over

Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants qf India”. The5e responsibilities

include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial conlrols that were

operating effcctively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to

company's policics, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the

accuracy and coinpleteness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable firauciai

information, as required under theCompanies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls o›'er financial

reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance wtth the Guidance Note on Audit of

Internal financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institule of

Chartered Accountants of India, and the Standards on Auditing, as prescribed under section 143(10) of

the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, w ith

reference tp the finnncia! statement.

Those Smndards and theGuidance Note mquis that we comply w ith ethical requirements and plan and

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adeqUate internal financial controls over

financial reporting ivns established and iiiaintained and if such controls operated effectiveiy in all material

respects

Gur audit involves performing pi ocedurus to obtain nudit evidence Rboui the adequacy of thei ntci nal

financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of intcrnal

financial controls over financial i eporting included obtaining an understanding of internal finailcial

controls ovm financial reponing, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and



evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The

procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material

misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we hgve obtained is sufficient and appropriate to providea basis for

our audit opinion on the Company's internal finattcial ontrnls system over financial reporting.

Meaning ofInternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting isa process designed to provide reasonable

assurance regarding thei eliabil ity of financial reporii rig and the preparation of financial siatements for

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal

financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

(I) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2J provide reasonable assurance that tranSRctions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of’

financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts

and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of

management and directors of the company; and

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,

use, or disposition of the company's sssvts that could havea material effect on the financial

statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial rcporting, including the

possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error

or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also. projections of any evaluation of the internal fi nancial

controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control

over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree ot’

compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Qu8lified Opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the Company hasnot

established its internal control over financial reporting criteria considei'ing the essential components of

internal control staled in the Guidance Note on Audit ofI eternal Controls over Financial Reposingissued

by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. As a result, we are unable to obtain sufficienl and

appropriate audit evidence to providea basis for our opinion whether thecompany hasadequate internal

control over financial reposing and whether such internal control was operating effectively as on 31'

March, 2024.



Based on thelimited audit procedures performed by us during thecourse ofour audit, the following material

weakness hasbeen identified in the operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial control over

fiiuncial reporting as at 31“ March, 2024:

(a) The branch does nothave an appropriate internal control system forinventory as thete is no

integration between thefinancial accounting module and inventory module.

(b) The branch does not have adequate internal controls reconciling and obtaining balance

confimiation from Sundry Debtors, Sundry Creditors and other parties. This could result in

material weakness, in the financial reporting process of debtors, creditors and other parties.

(c) The branch has not maintained proper records and reconciliations of GST, TDS on GST

Liability, which havea material impact on the financial reporting of such amounts in the

financial statements. Further, the branch does not have adequate internal control on the

payments of statutory dues i.e., GST, TDS, PF,PT ESIC etc. within due dates.

2. Auxiliary Business Division, Bengaluru

(a) The Branch does not have as appropriate internal control system to reconcile the financial

accounts pertaining to Goods and Services Tax etc. with the relevant tax records and returns

whichcan possibly result into under/over statement of such amounts in the financial statements.

Such non-reconciliation also raises the possibility of not properly accounting the

purchases/procurements.

(b) The Branch does nothave appropriate internal control with respect to Inventory and valuation

of inventory.

(c) The Branch does not havea proper system of control over invoicing, sales and inventory from

different outlets.

3. Corporate Heed Office and Company asa whole

(a) The company does not have an adequate internal control system for obtaining balance

confirmations from Sundry Debtors, Sundry Creditors and other parties. This may result in

material misstatement inthe standalone financial statements.

A ’material weakness’ isa deficiency, ora combination of deficiencies, in internal financial control over

financial reporting, such that there isa reasonable possibility thata material misstatement of the company's

annual oc interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected ona timely basis.



We have considered the material weaknesses identified and reposed above in determining the nature,

timing, and extent of audit procedures applied in our audit of the financial statements of the Company, and

these material weaknesses have affected our opinion on the financial statements of the Company, and we

have issueda qunlified opinion on the financial smtements.

farN S V M & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm registration number:0 10072S

“ G C S Mani

Partner

Membership No: 036508

MAIN: 24036508BKDEVC1090

Place: Bengaluru

Date: 09-08-2024
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“ANNEXURE D” referred to in paragrnph 3 under the heading “report on other legal and

regulatory requirements” of our report directions indicating thea rears to be examined by statutory

auditors during the course nf audit of annual accounts of HMT limited for the financial year

2023-24 issued by the comptroller& auditor general of Ind in (“C&AG”) under section 143 (5) of

the Companies Act, 2013

S.Ao Dii”cctions

Whetiier the Company hassystem in place

to process all the accounting transactions

through JT system? Ifyes, thc implications

of processiig of accounting transaclions

oiitside IT system on the iniegrity of the

äCCOt@S älOne Wjth finaneial implications,

ifany, may be slated.

Whether there is any rcsiructuring of an

existing loan or cases or’ waiver/ write off of

debts/ loans/interest etc. iiiadc by a lcnder to

the Coitipany due to the Company's

inability to repay the loan? If yes, the

tinancial impact may be stated. Whether

such cases are properly accounted for’? (In

case, lender isa Government company, then

this direction is also applicable to statutory

auditor of lenders coiiipany).

Whether funds (grants ’subsidy etc.)

received/ receivable for specific schemes

from central/ state Government or i\s

agencies were property accounted for/

utilized as per its term and ¢onditionsY List

the cases of de viation.

Audit Observations

Based on the information and explanation provided

to us by the management, it has a system where

accounting vouchers are processed and prepared

manually, due authorizations arc obtained which are

later entered into IT System i.e., the accounting

software maintained by the company. The company

has adequate control to ensure the integrity of the

accounting transactions.

Based on the intonation and explanation furnished

to tis by the Company, there is no restructuring of

loan/ waiver off of‘ debts/ loans/ interest clc front its

lender s.

Based on the infonnation and explanation furnished

to us by the Company, it has received an amount of

Rs.12.74 Lakhs fi'om Department of heavy

Industries towards reimbursement expenses incurred

by the Company forfinancial& Strategic Review of

Consolidation& Restructuring Plan of the Counpany

paid to llM, Rangalore. Since the coniiirunication

from Department of Heavy Industries slates as

st hool. Above tsnaia Bart, Raïlway Parallel Roed, humaia Psrk West, Bangalore 560 020. India, www,nsvo.in

IT + 9180 4)50 60!\4/5/6/ 143746057/58IE-p80pIe|Znsvn.inI



forN S V M & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm registration number: 0l0072S

G C S Mani

Membenhip No:036508

UDIN: 24036508BKDEVC1090

Place: Bengaluru

Date: 09-08-2024

onetime interest free loan the same hasbeen treated

as current liabilities. Management hasinformed that

it is in process of getting ratification for same.

Accordingly, we are unable to comment whether it is

loan or grant given by the Central Government.

Further, the Company has an unspent balance of

Rs.28.24 crores as on 31.03.2024 out of the Loan

eceired 9on GOI ofRs. 641.i8 cross.



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

TotheMembers ofHMT Limited -

Report on theAudit oftheConsolidated Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

NSVM&
A S S 0 C I A T E S

%MARTIRE0I00?IITS

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of HMT Limited (hereinafter referred to as the

"the Holding Company”), its subsidiaries, its associate and joint ventures (Holding Company and its

subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”) which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31°' March

2024, and the statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income) fortheyear then

ended 31 March 2024, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows forthe

year ended on that date and notes to the ConSolidated financial statements, includinga summary of

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except

for the basis of Qualified Opinion S8RtiOn of our repoñ, the aforesaid consolidated financial

statements give the information required by the Act in the manner sorequired and givea ture and fair

view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, in the case of

(a) Consolidated Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the group as at 31" March, 2024 and

(b) Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), of the profit for the

year ended on that date.

(c) Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity, the changes fortheyear ended on that date.

(d) Consolidated Cash how statement of the fiow ofcash in the group foryear ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

I. HMT Limited

1. Food Proceasing Machinery Unit, Aurangabad

As perinformation and explanation given to us with regard to Inventory valuation as stated

in Note No.2 (ii) (j) stock of raw material, it is valued by adopting Weighted Average

Cost method. However, in the inventory smtement provided for verification purpose, the

correctness of stock items rates and therefore, cost could not be verified due to absence of

sufficient and appropriate audit evidence. Owing tothenature of Company's records and

in the absence of sufficient audit evidence, we are unable to ascertain if there is material

departure from theWeighted Average Cost Method adopted by the company. We arealso

unable to ascertain its consequent impact if any, on the Standalone Ind AS financial

statements.

2. Auxtliary Business Division, Bengaluru

(a) Non - receipt of balance Confirmations with regard to Trade Receivables, Tmde

Payables, Other Current Assets and Œher Current liabilities and hence, impact of the same on

thestandalone financial statements cannot be quantified.
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(b) The Company records rental income generated from thebuildings situated on the land

which is not recorded in the books of accounts of the Company. On examination of records

produced for verification, the status of the land and it's ownership is in the name ofHMT

Limited.

(c) Ind AS 40 requires the Company toobtaina fair valuation report of the investment

properties from8 registered Yaluef as defined under Rule2 of Companies (Registered Valuers

and Valuation) Rules, 2017. However, we observe that the Company hasnotcomplied with the

above requirement as prescribed by Ind AS-40.

1. Corporate Head Oifice and Company asa whole

(a) Non - receipt of balance Confirmations with regard to Trade Receivables, Trade

Payables, Other Current Assets and Other Current liabilities and hence, impact of thesame on

thestandalone financial statements cannot be quantified.

(b) IND AS 40 defines Investment Property as property held to earn rentals or for capital

appreciation or both. lt is observed that Corporate Head Office derives rental income partly

from building (owned by theentity) which is not classified as Investment properly in the

standalone financial statements.

(c) Ind AS 40 requires the Company toobtaina fair valuation report of the investment

properties froma registered valuer as defined under Rule2 ofCompanies (Registered Valuers

and Valuation) Rules, 2017. However, we observe that the Company hasnotcomplied with

theabove requirement as prescribed by Ind AS-40.

(d) Ind-AS 109 requires an entity to apply expected credit loss (ECL) model for

measurement and recognition of impairment loss. However, as per the information and

explanation given to us no ECL matrix was prepared for the period under audit for creating

provision for loss allowance. Hence, we are unable to ascertain its impact, if any, on the

Standalone Ind As financial statements.

(e) As per Ind AS-109, theCompany hastorecognize loss allowance forexpected credit

losses on a financial asset. In the instant case, we observe that the Company haslong

outstanding receivable from HMT Machine Tools Limited in respect of which theCompany

hasnotrecorded any expected credit losses. In our opinion as HMT Machine Tools Ltd is

incurring continuous losses and has a negative net worth, the ability of the Company to

recover the amount receivable from HMT Machine Tools Limited remains doubtful.

(f) As per Schedule III of Companies Act, 2013, trade payables include all amounts due

on account of purchase of goods and services received in the normal course of business. In the

instant ease, we observe that an amount ofRs 1510.99 lacs which is presently disclosed as

Accrued expenses under the head Other Current Liabilities must be disclosed under Trade

Payables. further, the Company must provide ageing analysis for the amount disclosed under

thehead Accrued Expenses.

(g) We draw your attention to Note No.53 wherein the Company hasstated that it has no

transactions with struck off companies under section 248 of The Companies Aot, 2013.

However, Company hasnotprovided appropriate audit evidence to establish that they do not

have such transactions.



II. HMT Machine Tools Limited (“MTL”)

(a) Ind AS 2 - according to the details and information provided to us, the value of Raw

Materials, Work- in- progress and Stock in Trade (Finished Goods) aretaken on the basis

of job cards issued for thc particular work order and stock taking is on Weighted Average

basis, ho›xever, due to non-availability of valuation report and detailed working of

Inventories, we are unable Io comment on thecompliance w'ith Ind AS 2 and the iiiipact

en tinancials duo to this. Also, the physical verification of stock has not been done at

regular intervals.

(b) No provision has been made in these Accounts for interest/ penalty/ damages for the

delayed remittance of provident fund dues to the appropriate authorities as al March 31,

2024, and the same is non quantifiable. further, no provision has been made for

penalty/damages, if any payable on non-settlement/ non-payment of gratuity dues as at

March 3.1, 2024. We nreunable to express an opinion on the impnct of this non-provision

on the financial statements.

(c) In the absence of confirmation from parties regarding Trade payables, Trade receivables,

Advances received, Advances paid, Deposits (including security deposit), the process of

reconciliation of party balances is incoiiiplete. F unlier it is obsei ved that balance in

certain accounts having no transactions for more than five ycai‘s have been carried

forward.Due tonon-availability of’ confii’iBations of balance front parties, we aie unable

to express an opinion on the correctness of the balances stated and their impact on the

financial statements.

(d) As informed to us, the Unit owns total land of 330.28 acres in Bangalore Complex, which

were portly gifted and partly acquired over the years. The said land is used for factory

buildings, offices, residential quarters, hospital, cinema, stadium, commercial complex,

internal roads etc. In addition, there exists vast area of open spaces. As, the title dseds of

the land, physical verification, survey and demarcation of land is not provided, we are

unable to comment on the ownership, accuracy of the area of fund usnge and

encroachment ifany.

2. MTP Pinjore

(a) The unit has free\ted I uVi5ioi foi theC tisto›zzs i'efrti ctc I finns amounting to Its. 8.7g ]zkhs

mid Claim recoverable (Foreign) amounting 1o Ks.1. 55 Ilkss but \1 era is no certainty of

recovering the same and hadtobewiittciJ t›fT.

(b) As per Ind AS-19, defined benefit plan is termed as any plan in which theenterprise has

obligation to provide the agreed benetits to current and former employees and the

actuarial risk and investment risk fall. Therefore, the unit has not determ tried the actuarial

valuation liability for Provident Fund does as nt3 1st March 2024. Consequent effect of

the same on the financial statements for the years is not ascertainable. Accordingly,

provident fund set up by employer which require interest shortfall to be met by the

employer would be in effect defined benefit plan in accordance with mid AS-19. Hence

this is not in compliancc with the Ind AS- 19 “Employee Benefits”



(c) Non - receipt of balance Confirmations with regard to Trade Receivables, Trade Payables,

Other Current Assets and Other Current liabilities and hence, impact of the same on the

standalone financial statements cannot be quantified.

3. MTK,Kalamasoery

(a) As per the Accounting policies of HMT Machino Tools Limited, Kalamasseiy (MTK),

revenue in respect of sale of goods will be recognized at the point in time that the

customer obtains control of the goods or services which is when it has taken title to the

products assumed therisks and rewards of ownership of the product or services. As per

the shipping terms there are certain FOR (customer premises) contracts at the year end.

Though theinvoices in respect of the eight contracts were raised on or before 31 March

2024, the risk and rsward of ownership was not transferred before 31 March 2024 asthe

machines were received at customers site after 31 March 2024. Recognition of sales

revenue on invoice basis in FOR (customer premises) contracts without actual delivery at

customer premises has resulted in overstatement of Sales by Rs.1,33,68,730/-.

(b) Notes No, 10 Other Assets include Rs. 1,59,61,090/- being ADHOC-ADVANCE (APRIL

2019)-PS and Rs. 1,31,34,286/- being ADHOC-ADVANCE (APRIL 2019)-WG

disclosed under Advance toSuppliers/Employees Including Advance No. III — considered

good. This is monthly ad hoc payment totheemployees of HMT Machine tools Ltd vide

office order NO02l(M)fl9 dated 30th September 2019.The payment was made pursuant

to approval of Administrative Ministry vide letter No I -0501/3/2019+P.E.X(E198595)

dated 19th September 2019,where the employees of HMT Machine tools Limited has

been paid an additional monthly ad hoc amount equal to 10% of the running Basic Pay

plus dearnoss allowance of the month, with effect from 1st April 2019 (HMT Machine

tools Limited made profits during 2018-19 ). The ad hoc payment attmcts Income Tax.

Further the ad hoc payment mad4 was notadjusted while settling retired employees. We

are of the opinion that this is in the nature of expenditure and should be charged to the

Statement of Profit and loss account, as this is an employee benefit payment forwhich

Income taxis applicable. Had it been an advance, it should have been deducted while

settling retired employees. Hence, Other Assets are overstated to this extent. (Note:

Necessary rectification entry has been passed in Machine Tools Directomte Books.)

(c) Land shown in Note No.3A Property, Plant and Equipment and in Note No. 3B

Investment Property comprises of 349 Acres as per the statement furnished by the unit,

As per the copies of records furnished to us, 781 Acres 26 Cents 266 sq links property

was assigned to HMT Limited by GovL ofKerala in 1973. Out of this 432 Acres 19 Cents

and 126 sq Links were surrendered/ gifted/ given for various purposes. Balance land in

hand is S49 Acres 40 Cents and 140 Sq links. All this land is in the name ofHMT

Limited and not in the name ofHMT Machine Tools limited.

(d) Margin money deposits amounting to Rs. 84,97,769/- has been classified as other bank

balances. Out of the total margin money deposit, amount ofRs.24,64,346.00/-are subject

to confirmation and reconciliation, the consequent effect on the financial statement is

unaseertainable.

The Unit has provided interest on MSME ona simple interest basis on the annual

outstanding balance. Also, in the case of some agreements, even if the terms of conditions

specify payment within 30 days, the unit has taken 45 days as the minimum days for

calculation of MSME interest.



4. MTH, Hyderabad

(a) Division has disclosed the amount ofRs.25.21 crores under contingent liability instcad of

creatinga liability under ’Expenses' head as theamount is related to property tax payable

to Greater Hyderabad Municipal Corporation (G HMC) onfactory and Township and it is

a clear liability

(b) Division has not provided for the clear liability of Rs. 12.31 crore under "Expenses" head

relating to watei’ and sewerage charges bill raised by Hyderabad Metropolitan Water

Supply & Sewerage Board (HM W SSB) for supply of water, instead shown

Rs.1,24,59,308/- crore under contingent liability.

(c) The division lins made an excess provision of Rs.l .41 crores on account of Non- moving

Raw material, Stores and Spares and Tools up to year ended 31st March 2023 which is

continuing in books for the financial year ended 31 March, 2024. This has led to

understatement of Inventories in the financial statements.

5. MTA,Ajnier

(a) Non - receipt of balance Confirmations with regnrd to Trade Receivables, Trade Payables,

Other Current Assets and Other CurrentI iabil ities and hence, impact of the same on the

standalone financial statements cannot be quantified.

(b) The company hasnotprovided for interest for delay in payment toMSME's asperMicro,

small, and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 which in turn results in

understatement oi'expenses and liabilities in the financial statements.

6. PTH, Praga Tools Hyderabad and MTD, Benga(uru

(a) Now - receipt of balance Confirmations with regard to Trade Receivables, Trade Payables,

Other Current Assets and Other Current liabilities and hence, impact of the same on the

standalone financial statements cannot be quantified.

Basis for Disclaimer Opinion

TheAuditor of MTH. Hyderabad,a branch of HMT Machine Tools Limited has expressed Disclaimer

Opinion regarding the finaiic ial statements of the division on the basis that the auditor was not been

able to obtBin sufficient and appropriate audit evidence to providea basis for an audit opinion on these

financial statements.

Turnover of Mfl“H, Hyderabad toTotal )“urnover of Hv"r machine tools Limited is 23.19%. Assets of

MTH, Hyderabad toTotal Assets of HMT Machine tools Limited is 25.22%

The branch auditor has summarised thebasis for disclaimer based on the following obsewations-

(a) Property, Plant, and Equipment: According to the information available to us, the Division

has immovableproperty transferred to it on lense from the Government of India, but it is not

in compliance with JND AS 116 as the lease dceds were not provided. With reference to Note

, 3A of the financial statements, the Division chargesi 00% of its cost to depreciation over ttle

useful life of the asset northa residual value of Rs. 1. Upon examining the asset register, we

noticed that the dates of purchase of the assets were not available, which raises doubts about



(b}

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f}

(g)

the remaining useful life of these assets. However, division following this as per instructions

given by head office

Capital Wnik inProgress: We draw an attention to Note 3B ofthefinancial statements which

discloses capital work in progress (CWIP) ofRs.1,10,00,000. During thecourse of audit, no

details in respect of CWIP provided. In the absence of the details of the same, we areunable

to fotm an opinion on the existence, completions and valuation of the Capital Work in

Progress.

Inventory Valuation: We draw attention to Notes5 and 25 of the financial statements. The

division disclosed its inventory at Note No.5 Rs.37,12,74,054 for the year ending 31.03.2024

(Pr.Year: 39,05,51,467) for which we were unable to obtain sufficient and appropriate audit

evidence regarding the existence, title, and value of the inventory as on that date. Further,

during the year under consideration,a provision against non-moving inventories made of

Rs.1,19,86,909 and charged to the profit& loss account under “Other Expenses - Note

No.25” which carrying the total provision made fortheyear ending 31.03.2024 is of

Rs.4,82,89,601 (Pr.Year 3,63,02,692) disclosed under Note No.5. There is no base is provided

except the system generated report, due to which we are unable to form an opinion on the

correctness of the provision made against the now-moving inventories.

Trade Receivables: We draw attention to Note6 ofthefinancial statements, which discloses

trade receivables amounting to Rs.35,51,88,038 (Pr.year Rs.32,80,05,797). Customer-wise

balance confirmations were notprovided for the year ended March3 l, 2024. In the absence

of confirmation letters from customers, we are unable to confirm and satisfy ourselves

regarding trade receivables. Additionally, customer-wise and transaction-wise ageing of trade

receivables was not produced foraudit Consequently, we are unable to confirm theageing of

trade receivables as disclosed in Note 6A.

Allowance for Credit Loss: We draw attention to Notes 6, 6A and 25 of the financial

statements in respect of allowance for expected credit loss against the Trade Receivables,

During the year ending 31.03.2024 an amount of RS. 69,68,182 (PY.Rs.1,74,34,928) is

charged to the profit & loss account on account of ‘allowance for expected credit loss’ under

Nota No.25 “Other Expenses”. The total amount (provision) of ‘allowance forexpected credit

loss’ is carrying atNote No.6 is Rs.22,79,77,008 (Pr.year Rs.22,10,08,826). The division fails

to justify the provision made for‘expected credit loss’ against the Trade Receivables and for

the carrying amount as at the year end. Therefore, we are unable to form an opinion on

whether the provision made during theyear for‘expected credit loss’ and the carrying amount

for‘expected credit loss’ is sufficient

Other Current Assets: We draw attention to Note 9- “Other Current assets” of the financial

statements, the division disclosed the advances given to the suppliers and employees which

amounting to Rs.6,97,85,415 (PY Rs.7,37,82,623). The division fails to maintain the details

of the suppliers & employees towhom theadvances given which is the primary responsibility

of the division in maintenance of the accounting records, ln the absence of the same we are

unable to form an opinion on the same. Additionally, the division provideda provision for

‘impairment of doubtful advances’ against these suppliers and employees advances which

amounting to Rs.2,08,15,692 (Pr.year Rs.2,08,15,692). The division fails to justify the

provision made against the supplier and employees advances. Consequently, we are unable to

comment onthesame.

Borrowings& Other financial liabilities: We draw attention to Note 13.B and Note 15 ofthe

financial statements, which discloses that the Division availed a term loans from the

Government of India amounting to Rs. 90,73,05,000 (PY Rs.90,73,05,000) with interest

accrued and due disclosed in the Note No.15 amounting to Rs.130,98,82,874 (PY.

Rs.1,15,98,29,947) respectively, Additional information regarding the security and terms of

repayment was not provided or disclosed in the financial statements. Due to non-disclosure of

required infomiation which isa violation of Schedule III. Further, we are unable to form an

opinion on the currant and non-current portions of the liability disclosed under Other

Financial Liabilities. Additionally, we are unable to conclude the position of these loans as no



third-party confirmation was provided for the audit excepta letter from head office showing

interest and principle amount outstanding.

(h) Trade payables: We draw attention to Note l4 ofthefinancial statements, which discloses the

amounts due to vendors amounting to Rs,24,50,l8,324 (Pr.Year Rs.21,17,65,745). In the

absence of confrmation letters from vendors, we are unable to confirm and satisfy ourselves

regarding Eade payables. Further, the following amounts included in the ‘Trade payable

under Note No.14’ that have remained static/ continuing compared to the previous year

withoutjustification:

• Liability of OSL Expense: Rs.5,96,88,819

• Hyderabad Metro Water: Rs.8,18,37,775

• Liability for SCR Expense: Rs.79,70,164

In the absenns of which we areunable to form an opinion the same.

With reference to the amount disclosed in Note to.l4A of thefinancial statements which

Discloses of ‘amounts due to Micro enterprises and small enterprises’ of the division as per

MSMBD Act,2006. Division has not been provided the recognition criteria for MSME

vendors for the purpose of our audit, which rise doubt on the correctness of the disclosure

given in financial statements. Additionally, vendor-wise 8nd transaction-wise ageing of trade

payables is not provided to confitm theageing of trade payables as disclosed in Note l4B.

(i) Revenue received in advance; We draw attention to Note 16ofthefinancial statements under

‘Other current liabilities’ which includes ‘revenue received in advance’ amounting to Rs.

l0,45,70,143 (Pr,Year Rs.10,33,72,324). The division fails to provide the details of the

amounts received from therespective customers, and their confinnation letters. In the absence

of thesame, we areunable to form an opinion on the same.

(j) Statutory dues: Wo also dmw attention to the same Note No. 16 of thefinancial statemenu

under ‘Other liabilities’ which includes ‘statutory dues’ amounting to Rs.69,96,09,510

(Pr.Year.Rs.67,36,07,948); "Withholding of Taxes and Other Tax Payables" amount to

Rs.2,37,35,260 (Pr.Year. Rs.3,69,97,253). Significant portion of these amounts aredue from

earlier years. The division has not been provided the timelines for the amounts due tovarious

statutory authorities, and any assessment orders for the said dues. Consequently, we are

unable to form an opinion on these amounts.

(k) Other Liabilities: We further also draw an attention to the same Note 16 of the financial

statements, ‘Other liabilities’ includes following liabilities:

• Miscellaneous Recoveries: Rs. 1,20,89,855

• Advance Received Against Rent: Rs.25,93,974

• SCR Expenses: Rs.52,69,152

The division has not been provided the details of the parties to whom these amounts are

payable/ due and the confirmation letters from the respective parties. Consequently, we are

unable to form an opinion on these amounts.

(1) Other expenses: With reference to Note 25 of the financial statements - ‘Other expenses’

whioh includes PF Trust Loss Rs.1,25,00,000 (Pr.year Rs. 1,25,00,000). For the same, the

division explained that the Division had opted to pay Provident Pund to its Trust but has

defaulted in payment of contribution to the PF trust. Consequently, the Division has shareda

loss of Rs. l,25,00,000/- by the PF Trust due to this default. This amount is carried to the

Balance sheet under Statutory dues and disclosed in ‘Other Current liabilities’ at Note No.16.

The division has not been provided any basis for said amounts. Consequently, we are unable

to form an opinion on the amounts charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss and carrying to

the balance sheet under liabilities.

(m) Contingent liabilities: We draw attention to Note 26 of the financial statements, which

discloses contingent liabilities related to pending litigations and various cases against the

Division. We are unable to assess the reliability of these disclosures in the financial

statements, nor can verify the status of the litigations and cases presented. Consequently, we

are unable to measure theimpact of these contingent liabilities on the financial statements, as

the current status of many cases could not be tracked due to insufficient information.



We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SA's) specified under section

143(10) of the Companies Act, 20lS. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described

in the Auditor's Responsibilitiesfor the Audit ofthe Consolidated Financial Statements section of our

report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to

our audit of the Consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

and theRules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with

these requirements and the Code ofEthics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to providea basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were ofmost significance in

our audit of the standalone financial statements for the financial year ended 31° March 2024. These

matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements, and in

forming our opinion thereon, and we do not providea separate opinion thereon, and we do not provide

a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit

addressed the matter is provided inthat context.

We have determined the matters described below to be thekey audit matters to be communicated in

our report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the

audit of the standalone financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these

matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements. The results of

our aiidil procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters helow, provide the

basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying standalone financial statements.

Key AuditMatière how our auült addresseü the key matter

1. RMT Limited

Revenue Recognition from Operating Leases as per IND AS 116 -Leases

The company earns rental income from leasing Our Audit Procedures include the following —

out properties on a commercial and residential 4 Wc have obtained the information such

basÎ5. aS Number of residential quarters and

As the rental income earned formsa significant shops, occuparicy, Tenant name, Date of

part of the total income earned, the matter is occupancy and vacancy.

considered as key audit matter. 4 We have verified lease agreemunts on

sample basis

4 Wc have verified journal entries passed

with the rental income to be recognized

as per lease agreements.

4 Wc have verified the impact of Ind AS

116 on theront received by the entity.

Revenue recognized trou Sale ofmatches

The entity is engaged incale of matches and eams Our Audit Procedures include the following —

a major part of revenue. 4 Wc have obtained an understandÎI8

And ence, considered this asa ltey audit matter, how the invoicing for the sales made at

'* the showrooms and sales made through

e-Commerce website is done.

& We were provided with the transaction



log in the e-commerce website against

which theinvoices arc generated.

4 We have obtained an understanding

based on recording the income from sale

of watches in the books ofaccounts.

P The sale of watches recofded in books

was selected on sample basis and verified

against the invoices generated.

4 We have checked the sequential order for

the invoices generated against the sales

made.

H We have obtained an explanation in

respect to the cancelled invoices.

Loan gives toHMT Machine Tools Limited

The entity had given loan to it's wholly owned Our Audit Procedures include the following —

subsidiary HMT Machine Tools Limited havinga P We have obtained the Minutes of

balance of Rs. 30,582.41 lakhs. Meeting of Board Committee and Board

The amount given as loan to this entity formsa resolutions in respect to the approval of

major pan of Current Assets and hence, loan given to HMT Machine Tools Ltd,

considered asa key audit matter. D We have verified the rate of interest at

which theloan was given.

4 We have verified the sources of funds for

the loan given.

4 We have verified the reasons for which

theloans were given.

4 We have verified the impact of Section

185 and Section 186 of Companies Act,

2013 on such loan given.

Inventory valuation

4 We were provided with the interest

workings in respect of interest income

recorded on such loan.

Inventory is considered asa key audit matter as Our Audit Procedures include —

the valuation and determination of its impairment 4 We have obtained the Inventory

require usage of seveml key assumptions and Yaluation reports from themanagement.

estimates that may havea material impact on the 4 We have obtained the Quantitative details

Standalone Financial Statements. in respect of type of Inventory held by

the entity.

4 We have obtained as understanding on

the accounting policy followed by the

entity to measure the Inventory on the

closing date.

4 We have analyzed and verified the

disclosure requirements as per Ind AS -2

and Schedule III of Companies Act,

2013.



Emphasis ofMatter Paragraph

1. HMT Limited

(a) We draw you attention to Note No. 49 ofStandalone Ind AS financial statements for the

financial year ended 31st March, 2024 wherein HMT Limited has invested Rs.l5 lakh

(50% ofequity shares) comprising 1,50,000 equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up in

Sud to HMT Process Engineers {India) Ltd., BenB•• {Mls. 8udmo - HMT). lvt/s.

Sudmo-HMT hasnooperations. The Board of HMT Ltd has approved (February 2020/

July 2021) forclosure of the defunct joint venture company (Mls, Sudmo- HMT) and

submitted the closure proposal to Administmtive Ministry (July 2021) forapproval,

(b) We draw you attention to Note No. 50 ofStandalone Ind AS financial statements for the

financial year ended 31st March, 2024 wherein HMT Limited has invested Rs.20.84 lakh

(39a» of equity shares) comprising 20,84,050 equity shares of Rs.I each frilly paid up in

Gujarat State Machine Tools Corporation Ltd., Bhavanagar (Mls. CiSMTC). The Board of

HMT Ltd gave (March 2021) in principle approved for liquidation of Mls. GSMTC and

issued the consent letter to Gujarat Industrial Investment Corporation Limited (GIIC),

GIIC approved (September 2021) liquidation of Mls. GSMTC andsubmitted (October

2021) the proposal to Industries& Mines Department. HMT Ltd submitted (April 2022)

theliquidation proposal to Administrative Ministry.

(o) We draw you attention to Note No.5I ofStandalone Ind AS financial statements for the

financial year ended 3lst March, 2024 wherein HMT Limited has invested 30,0D,000

equity shares ofl Naira each fully paid up in Nigeria Machine Tools Limited, Nigeria

(Mls. NMTL). The Board of HMT Ltd gave (February 2020) approval for divestment of

stake in Mls. NMTLandsought approval from Administrative Ministry,

(d) We draw your attention to Note No. 3C- Additional Information (d)&(e), Note No. 22-

Additional Information and Nots No. S4 (ii) of Standalone Ind AS financial statements

for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024 relating to transfer of land to Raman

Research Institute and Government of Uttarakhand (tmnsferee) wherein the Company

(transferor) has received antire sale consideration and has given the possession of the land

in the earlier years resulting in performance of contract by both the parties and

consequently provision for tax has been pit›vided by the Company ofRs,980 Lakhs.

However, therecognition of profit loss on transfer of land will be considered in the year

of registration of sale deed.

Our opinion on the above matters is not modified.

2. BMT Machine Tools Limited ("MTL”)

(a) MBX, Bangalore

As infonned to us, a portion of the land used for the Roads measuring

approximately 4,25 acres has been acquired by Bruhat Bangalore Mahanagara

Palike (BBMP). As pertheDirection of the Court land compensation of Rs.18.93

Crores has been fixed, valuing the land@ 1.65 times the guidance value of land

of Rs. 2.70 Crores per acre fixed by the Government of Karnataka. As at March

3 l, 2024, BBMP haspaid adhoc compensation deposit of Rs. l 8.50 Crores

pending joint measurement and issue of correct dimension report, this is

reflecting as advance received in the books under Note-18. Since the land is not

transferred to BBMP following legal procedures, the said land measuring 4,25



acres is continued to be shown as Property, Plant and Equipment even though

BBMPhastaken over physical possession of the Land.

(b) MTA Ajmer

i. Due to pending finalization of rates by the Government ofRajasthan, provision of

conversion charges, if any, payable forconversion of Revenue land for industrial

use at Machine Tool Unit Ajmer, has not been made in the accounts as the matter

is sub-judiCe and execution of lease deed is pending.

3. HMT Watches Limited

(a) Note No. 2.8(a)

We draw attention to the Note No.2.8(a) of the “Notes to the financial statements”

regarding the closure of HMTWL duetodiscontinued manufacturing operations in the

year 2016-2017 and line of approval of the Government of India, all the moveable assets

being disposed-off to meet theclosure liabilities. By MHI vide letter dated 05-0S-2022,

MHI directed to transfer all immovable assets from books of HMTWL(under closure) to

the books of HMT Ltd, the Holding Company at book value. The rights of transfer of

immovable assets have been granted an aid of Rs.837.47 crores towards meeting Income

taxliability on account of writing off of GOI Loan amounting toRs.2,69,378.75/- lakhs in

the books of HMTWL toenable filing closure application of HMTWL u/s 248 of the

Companies Act,20l7.

(b) Note No.2.22

We draw attention to the Note No.2.22 of the “Notes to financial statements” regarding

the write off of Government ofIndia Loan amounting to Rs.2,69,2ig.7s/- lakhs. The said

amount was due to Government of India and as per the communication received from

Ministry of Heavy Industries and Public Enterprises vide letters dated 13-01-20 17, 08-05-

2023 and 06-02-2024, the company has written off the GOI Loans to amounting to

Rs,2,69,278.75 lakhs.

(c) Note No.2.29

We draw attention to Note No.2.29 of the “Notes to financial statements” regarding

preparation of financial statements on liquidation basis. The management ofthecompany

intends to clos# down thecompany asthecompany hassuffered huge losses and its net

worth has been eroded. The stakeholders, in view of losses, have decided to close the

company and apply for voluntary winding up of the company. In theview ofthesame,

the accounts of the company arenotprepared on Going Concern basis.

Other Matters

1. Group asA Whole

(a) The previous year figures in the financial statements of the company were audited by SSB

& Associates whose report has been furnished to us in which theauditor have provideda

qualified opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements as on 31-03-2024. The

Qualified opinion given by the previous auditor is given as “Annexure A”.

(b)We did not audit the financial statements of the three subsidiaries whose financial

statements refl#ct total assets at March 31,2024 and total revenues (including revenue

from discontinued operations) for the year ended on that date are as follows:

y NameoftheSubsidiary Total Assets (Rs.) Total Revenue (Rs.)



(in lakhs)

HMT Machine Tools Limited 31,338.53

HMT (International) Limited 5,862.44

HMT Watches Limited -

(in lakhs)

13,131.83

1,969.86

61.21

as considered in the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements. The financial statements of

these subsidiaries are audited by other auditors whose report have been furnished to us by

the Holding Company andouropinion of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements,

in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these

subsidiaries and joint veinure company andourreport in terms of subsections (3) andtll)

of Sec 143 of theAct, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries end Joint venture

company, is based solely on the report of the other auditors, Our opinion on the

Consolidated Ind AS financial statements, and our report on other legal and regulatory

requirements below, is not modified in respect of this matter with respect to our reliance

on the work done and thersport of the other auditors.

(c) The holding company hasnotreceived financial statements of Gujarat Machine Tools

Limited for the year ended March 31, 2024, an associate and the same hasnotbeen

considered for the purpose of preparation of these Consolidated Ind AS financia!

statements.

(d) Audited financial statements of Sudmo HMT Process Engineers (India) Limited,a joint

venture for the year ended March 31,2024 in which share of loss of the Group was

Rs.0.57 lakhs has been considered for preparation of these Consolidated Ind AS financial

statements.

(e) The holding company has notreceived financial statements of Nigeria Machine Tools

Limited for the year ended March 31,2024, an associate and the same has notbeen

considered for the purpose of preparation of these Consolidated Ind AS financial

statements.

2. HMT Limited

(a) The physical share certificates of 26,08,99,037 equity shares and 4,43,00,000 preference

shares of HMT Machine Tools Limited whose cost is Rs.26,089.90 lakhs and

Rs.44,300.00 lakhs respectively are not in possession of the Company asat 31" March

2024.

Information Other than theFinancial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information

comprises the information included in the Annual report but does not include the consolidated

financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do

not express any form ofassurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the

other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent

with the consolidated financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise

appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is

a material ttiisstatemeot of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing

to report in this regard.



Responsibilities of Management fortheConsolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of

these consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 that

givea true and fair view of theconsolidated financial position, eonsoiidated financial performance

and consolidated cash flows of the Group, its associate and joint venture in accordance with the

acGOtliiting principles generally accepted in India, including tire Accounting Standards specified under

section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Grortp and

of its associate and joint venture are responsible for maintenance of adequatc accounting records in

accordance with the provisions of the Act for snfegunrding the assets of the Group and ofits associate

and joint venture and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and

application of appropriate accounting policics; making judgments rind estimates that are reasonable

and prudent; and the design, iinplenie»tation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,

that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,

relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that giveu true und fair view

and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the

purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding

Company, asaforesaid.

In preparing the consol idated financial statements, the respective Board ofDirectors of the companies

included in the Group and of its associate and joint venture are i'esponsible for assessing the ability of

the Group and of its associate and joint venture, disclosing, as applicable, matters refuted to going

concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless inRnagernent either intends to

liquidate the Group ortocease operations, or hns no rcalistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associate and

joint venture are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and of its

associate and jofnt venture.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit oftheConsolitlated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether theconsolidated finallGial statements

asa whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an

auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance isa high level of assurance but is not

a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material

misstatement when it exists. Misstatements cum arise from fmtid or error and are considered material

if, individually or in the aggi egate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the econoni ic

decisions of users taken on the basis of these financiill StfttClTlenlS.

As pan of an audit in accordance With SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,

and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to providea basis for our opinion.

T)ie risk of not detectinga material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one

resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the attdit in order to design audit

j›rocedures that are appropriate in the circrirnstartcos. Under section 143(3)(i) of the

Companies Act, 20.13, v'e are also rcsponsiblc for expressing ottr opinion on whether the



company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating

effectiveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made bymanagement.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whethera material uncertainty exists

related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group and of its

associate and joint venture's ability to continue asa going concern. If we conclude thata

material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the

related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are

inadequate, to modify ouropinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained

up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the

Group and its associate and joint venture's to cease to continue asa going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial

statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements

represent the underlying transactions and events ina manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance witha statement that we have complied with relevant

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and

other matters that may reasonably ba thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the

Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (l l) of section 143 of the Act, based on our

audit and on the consideration of report of the other auditors on sepamte financial statements and

the other financial information of the subsidiary companies, associate companies and joint venture

companies, incorporated in India, as noted in the 'Other Matter’ paragraph we give in the

”Annexure B”a statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3(xxi) of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, basad on our audit and on the consideration of report of

the other auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial information of

subsidiaries, associate and joint venture as noted in the 'other matted paragraph we report, to the

extent applicable, that:

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We/the other auditors whose reports we have relied upon, have sought and obtained all the

information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary

forthe purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the

aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our

examination of those books and reports of the other auditors;

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the

q+"
S
’
O
°q Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of

Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report

c areinagreement with thebooks ofaccount;



(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian

Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian

Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 asamended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from thedirectors of the Holding as on 31

March 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company andthe

reports of the statutory auditors who are appointed under section 139 of the Act, of its

subsidiary companies, associate and joint venture none ofthedirectors of the Group andofits

associate and joint venture is disqualified as on 31 Mamh 2022 from being appointed asa

director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the

Holding Company andits subsidiaries and of its associate and joint venture and the operating

effectiveness of such controls, refer to otir separate report in “Annexure C”, and

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with

RulelI oftheCompanies (Audit and Auditors) RuleS, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of

our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on theconsideration

of the of the report of the other auditors on separate financial statements as also the other

financial information of the subsidiaries and of its associate and joint venture as notes in

‘Other Matter’ paragraph;

i. The consolidated financial statements has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its

consolidated financial position— Refer Note 37 totheConsolidated financial statements,

ii. The Group and of its associate and joint venture did not have any long-term contiacn

including derivative contracts for which there wete any material foreseeable losses; and

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts required to be transferred to the Investor

Education and Protection Fund bytheGroup andofits associate and joint venture.

) The respective managements of theHolding Company and its subsidiaries, associates

and joint ventures which are companies incorporated in India whose financial

statements have been audited under the Act have represented to us and the other

auditors of such subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures respectively that, to the best

of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either

from borrowed funds or share premium orany other sources or kind of funds) by the

Ciroup, associates and joint ventures to or in any other person or entity, including

foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing

Of Otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in

other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the

Group, associates and joint ventures (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any

guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries¡

b) The respective managements of theHolding Company and its subsidiaries, associates

and joint ventures which are companies incorpomted in India whose financial

statements have been audited under the Act have represented to us and the other

auditors of such subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures respectively that, to the best

of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been received by the Group, associates and

joint ventures from any person or entity, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”),

with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Crroup,

associates and joint ventures shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in

other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the

Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guamntee, security or the like

oa behalfof the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and



c) Based on theaudit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in

the circumstances performed by us and that performed by the auditors of the

subsidiaries, associates and joint vellu@flS Which arecompanies incorporated in India

whose financial statements havebeen audited under theAct, nothing has come toouror

other auditor's notice that has caused us or the other auditors to believe that the

representations undef sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material mrs-statement;

The Holding Company, its subsidiaries, associates and joint venture companies

incorporated in India have not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31st

March 2022, and therefore, compliance with section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 is

not applicable.

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks and that performed by therespective

auditors of the subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures which are companies

incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, except

for the HMT Limited (the holding company), HMT Machine Tools Limited and HMT

Watches Limited, the company, subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures have used an

accounting software for maintaining its books of account which hasa feature of recording

audit trail (edit log) facility and the same hasopemted throughout the year forall relevant

transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit, we and

respective auditors of the above referred subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures did not

come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with. Additionally, the audit

trail has been preserved by the Company andabove referred subsidiaries, associates and

joint ventures as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

forN S V M & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Fimi registration number: 0100725

Partner

Membership No: 03fi508

UDIN: 24036508BKDEVD6248

Place: Bengaluru

Date: 09-08-2024



HMT limited

AnnexureA toIndependent Auditor's Report

NS¥Mä
A S S 0 C IA T E S

CNARTEQEDACCOUNTANTS

The Annexure A referred to in the Independent Auditor's Repott to the Members ofHMT Limited (’the

Holding Company’) fortheyear ended 31 March 2024, the qualified opinion given on the previous year

fibres in the financial statements as on 31 March 2024 is as follows:

1. HMT Ltd.

(s) Corporate Head Office and Company asu whole:

1. Non-confirmation of balances of Trade Receivables, Loans and Advances, Trade Payables

and Other Current Liabilities and its consequential impact if any on the Standalone Ind AS

financial statements cannot be quantified,

2. The Company hasnotprovided status quo of Nigeria Machine Tools Lld. and Gujarat

State Machine Tools Corporation Ltd as on 3l^ March, 2023. Consequently, we are unable

to comment ontheimpact of thesame on Standalone Ind AS financial statements,

3. We draw your attention to Note No,63 wherein the Company hasstated that it has no

transactions with struck off companies iinder section 248 of The Companies Act, 2013.

However, Company hasnotprovided appropriate audit évidence to establish that they do

not have such trarlfl£tCtions. Indian Accounting Standards

4. Company forImpairment on Financial Assets as per Ind-AS 109 has to apply expected

credit loss (RCL) model formeasurement and recognition of impairment loss. However, as

per the information and explanation given to us no ECL matrix was prepared for the

period under audit for creating provision for loss allowance. Hence, we are unable to

ascertain its impact, if any, on the Standalone Ind AS financial statements, The effect on

revenue on all the above transactions are not ascertained.

(b) Food Processing Machinery Unit, Aurangabad:

1. As per information and explaiution given to us with reg;jrds to the Inventory valuation as

stated in Note No.2 (ii} (j) stock of raw material is valued by adopting Weighted Average

Cost method, However, in the inventory statement provided for verification purpose,

correctness of stock items rates could not be verified due to absence of sufficient and

appropriate audit evidence. Owing tothenature of Company's records and in the absence

of sutficient audit evidence, we are unable to ascertain if there is material departure from

the Weighted Average Cost Method ofvaluation adopted by company. We arealso unable

to ascertain its consequent impacts, if any, on the Ind AS financial statements.

/i•. 63/a, let floor, Above Canary 8ank, Railway ParzlIzI Road, Kumara Part I/feel, Buigalors- 560 028. Inal, www.nsvm.in
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II. HMT Machine Toolg Limited ("MTL”):

1. Non-confirmation of balances of Trade Receivables, Loans and Advances, Trade Payables and

Œtier Current Liabilities and its consequential impact if any on the Standalone Ind AS financial

statements cannot be quantified.

(a) I\4BX, Bangalozs:

1. Non-compliance with lnd AS, as per requirement of the Indian Accounting Standards

(Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act„ read with Rule7 of the Companies

(Accounts) Rules, 2014 and theCompanies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,

as amended on the following standards: Ind AS 2-According to the details and

information provided to us, the value of Raw Materiais, Work-in-progress and Stock In

Trade (Finished Goods) aretaken on the basis of job cards issued for the particular work

order and stock taking is on Weighted Average basls, however, due to non-availability of

valuation report and detailed working of Inventories, we are unable to comment on the

compliance with Ind AS 2 and the impact on financiele due to this. Also, the physical

verification of steek has not been done at tegular intervals.

2. In the absence of confirmation from parties regarding Trade payables, Trade receivables,

Advances received, Advances paid, Deposits (including security deposit), the No

provision has been made in these Accounts for interest/ penalty/ damages for the

delayed remittance of provident fund dues to theappropriate authorities as at 31st March

2023 and the same is non quantifiable. Further, no provision has been made for

penalty/damages, if any payable on non-settlement/non-payment of gratuity dues as at

31st March 2023. We are unable to express on opinion on the impact of this nonprovision

on the financial statements.

(b) MTA,Armer

l. Ind AS-3fi: Impairment test not done by Ajmer Unit on various assets. Hence financial

implictition of not conducting impairment test could notbe ascertained.

2. We are unable to comment on theapplicability of Ind AU 16, Leases to the unit since

the required information are not made available to us.

The unit has defaulted in settlement/payment of gratuity to the extent of Rs. 2,00,62,661/-

in the case of employees retired/separated from the unit. Further the unit has not made

any provision for penalty for non-payment/ settlement of gratuity as per the Payment of

Gratuity Act, 1972. The amount of penalty has not been ascertained by the unit, being

contingent in nature.

4. Ajmer Unit has not paid any interest which has been due and payable for the period of

delay in making payments (which have been paid but beyond theappointed day during

the year) but without adding the Interest specified under micro, small, and Medium

Enterprises Development Act, 2006.



1. As per Ind AS -19, defined benefit plan is armed asanyplan in which theenterprise has

obligation to provide the agreed benefits to current and former employees and the

actuarial risk and investment risk fall. Therefore, the unit has not determined the actuarial

valuation liability for Provident Fund dues as at 31't March, 2023. Consequent effect of

the same on the financial statements for the years is not ascertainable. Accordingly,

provident funfi set up employer which require interest shortfall to be met by the employer

would be in effect defined benefit plan in accordance with Ind AS -19. Hence this is nol

in compliance with theInd AS-19 Employee Benefits.

2. As per Ind AS-36, Impairment of Assets, the objestive of this Standard is to prescribe the

procedures that an entity applies to ensure that its assets are carried at no more thantheir

recoverable amount. An asset is carried at more than its recoverable amount if its carrying

amount exceeds the amount tobe recovered through use or sale of the asset. If this is the

case, the asset is described as impaired and the Standard requires the entity to recognise

an impairment loss. The Standard also specifies when an entity should reverse an

impairment loss and prescribes disclosures. However thecompany hasfailed to conduct

an impairment test of assets, as otherwise advised to be conducted once annually.

td) MTH, Hyderabad

1. Property, plant & equipment is cluirged at 100% Ofthecost of asset over their useful life.

The residual value for all the assets has been standardized at Re 1. The Division has fiot

appropriately justified and disclosed in the Notes toAccounts for charging depreciation at

t000Zo ofthecost of asmt over their useful life, In our opinion this isa departure from the

Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 where it is stated that Residual value should be

5% forthe tangible assets and depreciation should be charged at ninety five percent of the

cost of asset over their useful life. The Impact ofsuch non-compliance on theloss, Assets

and liabilities could not be ascertained. Our observation revealed that the division has not

complied with “Component” based depreciation method asrequired by Ind AS 16 despite

the slated policy and necessary identification of components of an item of PPE has not

been identified and depreciated accordingly. The impact of such noncompliance on the

loss and the accumulated depreciation could not be ascertained.

2. Employee Benefits: Our observation reheated that the division is not in compliance with

para 57 of IND AS 19, as defined benefit plan does not include Current service cost plus

interest obligation thereof nor does it incorpomte plan asset. The impact of the such non

compliance on theloss and the current liabilities could not be ascertained.

3. Sale of goods includes Rs.16.43 crore pertaining to four machines dispatched to

customers on Free-on-Road (FOR) basis at Customen premises. Though, theinvoices in

respect of the four contracts were raised on or before 31st March 2023, the risk and

reward of ownership was not transferred before 3l^ March 2023, the risk and reward of

ownership was not transferred before 31st March 2023 as the contracts were on FOR

customer premises basis. Recognition of sales revenue on invoice basis in FOR customer

premise contracts without actuai delivery at customer premises has resulted in

overstatement of sales by I 6.43 crore and understatement of stock in trade by Rs 12.19

crore with consequential understatement of Loss by Rs 4.24 crore.



4. Property Tax of Rs.25.21 Crores is payable to Greater Hyderabad Municipal Corporation

(GHMC) onfactory and Township of HMT machine Tools Limited, Hyderabad (MTH).

Since the stay order obtained by MTH on payment ofproperty tax to GHMCwasvacated

in the month October 2022 by Hon'ble High Court of Telangana, GHMC ratsed

(November 2022) demand on MTH forpayment ofpropeny taxof 25.21 crore in respect

of Factory and Township of MTH. However, the company hasnotmade thenecessary

entries in this regard.

5. Hyderabad Metropolitan Water Supply & Sewerage Board (HM WSSB) hasraised

Rs.12.31 crore water and sewerage charges bill. However, the company hasnotmade

necessaiy entries in this regard,

6. Southern Power Distribution Company ofTelangana (TSSPDCL) hasrevised its earlier

demand of Rs 1.84 crore to Rs 1,16 crore. Company has disclosed this amount as

contingent liability but not made anyprovision in this regard.

(e) MTM, Bangalore

1. Compliance ofInd AS-36 Impairment of AssetS: We draw attention towards Ind AS- 36

Impairment of Assets in relation to the assessment of potential impairment loss of assets

of the unit. In respect of the company's procedure the asset verification is conducted by

the management once ’in every three years and accordingly as per the verification report

conducted in the Financial Year 2020-2021, it is noted that, the unit is yet to take

management approval for disposal of said assets as per the company's procedure and the

quantum ofimpairment value is not available to report.

2. Interest on delayed Provident Fund remittance and loss of the fund fortheFinancial Year

2022- 23 hasnotbeen provided foras amount was notascertainable,

3. The disclosire requirements as per Schedule Ill of the Companies Act 2013 read with

Section 22 of the Nticro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 inthe

financial statements.

II. HMT Watches Limited ("HWL”)

(a) Going Concern Status:

J. A material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the entity's ability to

continue asa going concern and that the financial statements do not adequately disclose

this matter.

2. The Board ofDirectors in its 72nd board meeting held as onl 8.01.2016 have decided to

close down thecompany after getting the approval from cabinet committee ofEconomic

Affairs.



3. The accumulated losses of the company asat the close of 31st March 2023 amounted to

Rs.2,68,727,66 lakhs against which the paifi up capital of the company is Rs.649.01

lakhs and the losses has totally eroded thenetworth of thecompany.

4. The company hasbeen incurring continues losses for the past many years.

5. The total liabilities of the company asat the close of 3)st March 2023 is Rs. 2,69,382,96

lakhs (Previous year Rs, 2,72,473.57/- lakhs) against which theFixed and current assets

book Yaiues are only Rs. 1,304.31 lakhs (Previous year Rs.4,245.30 lakhs).

(b) As per the communication received room Ministry of Heavy Industries and Public

Enterprises vide letters dated 13.01.2017& 27,03.2017, the company has notadjusted/

written off the GOI Loans and holding company loans amounting to Rs. 2,69,378.75 lakhs

during the financial year 2022-23. However, as pertheminutes of 79th meeting of Board of

Director of HMT Watches Ltd, the board has decided to account the write off loan together

with interest at the time of closure of the company asapproved by CCEA vide letter dated

13.01.2016. Consequently, the company hasoverstated the GOI liabilities (Note 2.12) to the

extent of Rs.2,69,378.75 lakhs and overstated the negative balance of Other Equity (Note

2.10) by Rs.2,68,378.75 lakhs. Further, any provision required which is resulting from above

transactions is also not accounted and not ascertained.

for N S V M & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Fitm registration number: 0100725

Partner

Membership No: 036508

UDfN: 24036508BKDEVD6248

Place: Bengaluru

Date: 09-08-2024



HMT Limiled

AnnezursC lotheIndependent Auditor's Report

NSVM&
A S S O C IA T E S

CNARTfRE0A1C0tNTANTS

The AnnexureC referred to in the Independent Auditor's Report totheMembers ofHMT Limited ('the

holding Company’) fortheyear ended 31 March 2024, we report that:

In terms ofth# information end explanations sought by us and given by the Company andthebooks of

account artd records examined by us inthenormal course of audit Bnd to the best of our knowledgc and

belief, we state that:

(xxi) Qualifications or adverse remarks by therespective auditors in the Companies (Auditors Report)

Order (CARO) reports of the companies included in the consolidated financial statements are:

S1. Name ofCompany

No.

l H M T Limited

CIN Relation

L29230KA1953GOI000748 Holding

Company

2 HMT Machine Tools U02922KAI999GOI025572 Subsidiary

Limited Corrlpany

Clause number

oftheCARO

report which is

qualified or is

adverse

Clause (i) (b)

Clause (i) (c)

Clausg(iii) (a) (A)

Clause(iii) (c)

Clause(iii) (d)

Clause(iii) (f)

Clause (vii) (a)

Clause (vii) (b)

Clause (ix) (a)

Clause (xiv) (b)

Clause (i) (b)

Clause (vii) (a)

Clause (vii) (b)
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3 HMT Watches U3330l KA l999GOI25573 Subsidiary

Limited Company

4 HMT

(INTERNATIONAL)

Limited

forN S V M & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm registration number: 010072S

C S Mani

Membership No: 036508

UDlN: 24036508BKDEVD6248

Place: Bengaluru

Date: 09-08-2024

U3309KAI974GOI002707 Subsidiary

Company

Clause (xvii)



NSVM &
A S S O C I A T E E

tHARTEREDACC0ONTANTS
AnnexureC totheIndependent Auditors' Report

ontheConsolidated Financial StateineiltS Of HMT limited torthe period ended 31 March 2024

Report on theInternal Financial Controls with reference to the aforesaid consolidated financial

statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the

Act’)

(Referred to parngiaphI (f) under ‘Report on other regulatory requirements’ Section of our report to

the members ofHMT Limited of even date)

We have stidited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of “H MT Limited” as of

ivtarch 3.1, 2024, in conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated financial stutemems forthe

yenr endcd on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal FinancÎR) OIltfiOI8

1’1ie respective Board of Dii'ectors of the Holding Company, its subsidiaries and its associate rind joint

venture is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal

control over’ financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Intenial Financial Controls

over Financial Reporting (the ‘Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of

India. J‘liese responsibilities include the design, implementation find maintenance of’ adequate internal

financial controls that were operating Effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its

business, including adherence to the respective company's polieies, the safeguarding of its assets, the

prevention rind detection of frauds and errors. the accuracy and coinpletencss of the accounting

records. rind the timely preparation of’ reliable financial inforrnatioi3t i\S 1’ UirGd under the Companies

Act, 20.13,

Auditor's ltesponsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the inter nan financial controls over financial reporting of

the company based on our audit, \Ve conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on

audit of internal financial eontrois and the Standards on Auditing, issued by Institute of Chartered

Accountants of India and deemed tobe preseribcd under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013,

to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance

Note require thnt we comply with ethical feqtiiremcnts and plan and perform the audit to obtain

reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was

established and maintained and ifsuch controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves perfonii ing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal

tinancial controls system over financial reporting and their operasing effectiveness. Our audit or‘

internal financial controls over tinancial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal

financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk thata material weakness exists. and

testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness or“ internal control based on the assessed

The procedures selected depend on theauditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks

aterial misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to frnud or grror.

63/1, Est floor, Above Canara Bank, Railway Parallel Road, Kumare Park \Yest, Bangalore 560.020. India, www.nsvm.in
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit cv idencc obtained by the other

auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Mattet Paragraph below, is sufficient and

appropriate to providea basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over

financial reporting.

lHeaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting isa process designed to pi'ovide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial

statements for external purposes in accordance n'ith generally accepted accounting principles. A

company's internal finillJcial coiatrol over financial reporting includes those o!icios and procodurcs

that:

(l) pertain to the iJiaintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the

transactions and dispositions of the nssets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assui ance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation

of financial statements iii accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that

receipts rind expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance witti

authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized

acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could havea material effect en the

financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of theinherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the

possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material inisstateincnts due to

error or fraud may occur and not be detected, Also, projections of any evaluation of thc internal

financial controls over financial reporting to future periods arc subject to the risk thai the intgrnal

finncial control over financial ro•porting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions. or

that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

0/n0n

1. Qualified Opinion ofHNIT Limited

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the

Company hasnotestablished its internal control over financial reporting criteria con.ordering

the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal

Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

As n result, we are enable lo obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence to providea busts

for our opinion whether thecompany hasadequate internal control over financial reporting and

whether such internal contro! was operating effectively as on 31" March, 2024.

Based on the limited audit procedures performed by us during the course of our audit, the

following material weakness has been identified in the operating effectiveness of the

Company's internal financial control over financial reporting as at 31" March, 2024:

° '.' ’) Food Processing Machinery Unit,A urnngabud

' : (a) I'lie branch docs not have an appropriate internal control system forinventory as there is

no integration between thefinancial accounting module and inventory module.



(b) The branch does not move adequate internal controls reconciling and obtaining balance

confirmation from Sundry Debtors. Sundry Creditors and other parties. This could result

in material weakness, in the financial reporting process of debtors, creditors and other

parties.

(c) The branch has not maintained proper records and reconciliations of GST, TDS on GST

Liability, w'hich havea material impact on the financial reporting of such amounts in the

financial statements. Further, the branch does not have adequate internal control on the

payments of statutory dues i.e., GST, TDS, PP,PT ESIC etc. within due dates.

(ii) Auxiliary Business Division, Bcngaluru

(a)Time Branch does not have an appropriate internal control system to reconcile the

financial accounts pertaining to Goods and Services Tax etc. with the relcvant tax

records and returns which can possibly result into under/over statement of such amounts

iii tire financial statements. Such non-reconciliation also raises ltte possibility of not

properly accounting the purchases/procurements.

(b)The Branch does not have appropriate internal contro! with respect to Inventory and

valuation of inventory.

(e)"the Branch does not havea proper systcm of control over invoicing, sales and inventory

from different outlets.

(iii) Corporate Head Office and Company asa whole

(a) The company does not have an adequate internal control system forobtaining balance

confirmations from Sundry Debtors, Sundry Creditor's and other parties. "l'liis may

result in inatei ial ni isslatement in the standalone financial statements.

2. HMT hlaehinc Tools Limited {“MTL”)

Inouropinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,

two divisons viz.,l) m"r- Hyderabad (Disclaimer Opinion as nbove)& 2) Praga Tools —

Hyderabad ,the following material weaknesses is identified in the company relating to

inadequate internal financial controls over financial reporting as at March 3 lst 2024

considering the essential components ofinternal controi stated in the Guidance Note on Audit

of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered

Accountants of India (ICAI).

(i) In respect of PTH, Praga Tools Hyderabad

(•)

(b)

The coinpany did not linve aduquntc appropriate internal controls for reconciling

inventoriesi esulting into inn-proper update to the financial books, physical verification

of inventory and Fixed Assets, obtaining balance confirmation from sundry debtor5,

sundry creditors and other parties. The company is incuri'ing cash losses from more

than “3” years, not able to serve the Govt. Of India loans. )“liis could potentially result

a material weakness, in financial reporting process of debtors, creditors and other

parties.

The company docs not have an appropriate internal control system to reconcile the

financial accounts pertaining to Goods and Services Tax etc. with the relevant tax

records and returns which can possibly result into under/over statement of such

amounts in the financial statements. Such non-reconciliation also raises the possibility

of not properly accounting the purchasefprocureinents. And adequate internal control

is not initiated in respect of payment of statutory dues within due dates and filing of

statutory dues under various statutes in turn resulting in various penalties, tote fees and

other conso•quences under different statutes.



(i i) In respect of MTA Ajnicr

(a)

(b)

(Q

(d)

The company does nothave adequate internal control in regard to physical

verification of inventory which shall havea material impact on the financial

statements.

The branch does not have adequate internal controls reconciling and obtaining

balance confirmation from Sundry Debtors, Sundry Creditors and other parties.

’Fit is could result in material weakness, in the financial reporting process of debtors,

creditors and other parties.

The company does not have adequate internal financial control on kecpin$

sufficient cash balances with it iii order to pay the stRtUtory dues within due dates

which hasledtheentity to incui’ penalties and late fees under various statutes.

The Branch does not have an appropriate internal control system to reconcile the

financial accounts pertaining to Goods and Services "l'ax etc. svith the relevant tax

records and returns which can possibly result into under/over statement of such

amounts in the financial statements. Such now-reconciliation also raises the

possibility of not properly accounting the purchases/procurements.

(ii i) In respect of MBX, Bengaluru

(a) The Branch docs not have an appropriate internal control system to reconcile the

financial accounts pertaining to Goods and Services Tax etc. with the relevant tax

records and retunis which can possibly result into under/over statement of such

amounts in the financial statements. Such non-reconciliation also raises the

possibility of not properly accounling the purchases/procurcmcnts.

(b) The Branch docs nothave adequate internal control on fil ing the statutory returns and

pnying the statutory dues within due dates which exposes the company to various

late fees, penalties and other consequences under various statutes.

(c} ln respect of MTP, Pinjore

(a) The bi'anch does not have adequate internal controls for reconciling and obtaining

balance conformation tiom Sundry Debtors, Sundry Creditors and other parties. This

could result in material weakness, in the financial rcporting process of debtors.

creditors and ot!ier parties.

(d) In respect of MTH, Hyderabad

(a) The branch dos not have on appropriate internal control in regard to maintenance of

books of accounts anda proper Accounting 8nd Finance mntrix is not adopted in

regard to accounting entries passed, modified, deleted in the Books of Accounts.

This itiay posea severe threat on the accuracy of the financial statements.

(b) The branch does not havc an adcq0atc internal control in respect of compliance to

Statutraiy dues within due dates which in reluin expose the division for various

penalties, late fees end other consequences.

(e) lii respect of MTD, J3engaluru

(a) The brnneh does not have adequate internal controls reconciling end obtaining

balance confiriiiation from Sundry Debtors, Sundry Creditors, deposits, adx anccs tind

other panics. This could result in material weaktiess, in the financial reporting

process of debtors, creditors, deposits, advances and other parties.



(b) The branch does not have an adequate internal control in respect of filing ot“ statutory

returns and payments of statutory dries under various statutes which exposes the

company to various late fees, penalties and other consequences under various

statutes.

respcct of the HMT Mnchinc ToolsL iniited

(a) Non reconeiliation r d non-confirmation of 3’rade receivables, trnde payables

balances, dcposits, Advance Received against Sales account, EMD Received and Paid

A/c niid othei old balances and advances.

(b) Substiintial de fay/ non filings of statutoty retiirns and detay/non-payment of statutory

dues exposes the Coinpany to various tate fees, penaltics and other consequences

under various statutes ex. IT Act, GST Act, Profession 2“ax Act, PF/ESI/Gratuity Acts

(Payinents to Funds set up under the Aets), including Property Taxes which are not

ascertainable and provided for in books of account in some instances.

(c) Laek of centralised control over recording and corrective legal/admin istraiive actions

in responding to an accounting of default/non-payment notices/claims received front

statutory bodies viz., Income Tax, TDS, GST, PF,etc.

(d) Need effective centralised management control over computerisation, accounting and

inventory system with proper staffing of accounts dept at units and Directorate.

A material weakness’ isa do•licieney, ora coiiibination of deficiencies, in internal financial control

over tinancial reporting, such that there isa reasonable possibility thata material misstatement of the

company's annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected ora timely basis.

We have considered the material weaknesses identified and reported above in dcierinin ing the nature,

timing, and extent of audit procedures applied in our nudit of the financial statements of’the Company,

midthese material weaknesses have affected our opinion on the financial stateiiieiits of the Company,

and we have issueda qualified opinion on the financial statements.

Our report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the

internal financiai controls over financial reporting with reference to these consol idated financial

statements of the Holding Coinpany, in so far as it relates to the three subsidiary companies which are

companies incorporAtcd in India, is based on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such

subsidiaries to the extent wade available to us.

/or N S 4' M & Associates

Chartcrcd Accountants

Firm registration numbcr: 0.10072S

Place: Bengaluru

Date: 09-08-2024
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QUALIFIED OPINION OF STATUTORYAUDITORAND MANAGEMENTREPLIES

HMT LIMITED

STANDALONE-2023-24

Audit Observations

1. Food Processing Machinery Unit,

Aurangabad

As perintormation and explanation gix'en to us

with regard to Inventory valuation as stated in

Note No.2 (i i) (j) stock of raw material. it is

valued by adopting Weighted Average Cost

method. However, in the inventory statement

provided forverification purpose, the correctness

of stock items rates and therefore, cost could not

be verified due to absence of s«nicient arid

appropriate audit evidence. Owing tothenature

of the Company’s records and in the absence of

sufficient audit evidence, we are unable to

ascertain it’ there is material departure from the

Weighted Average Cost Method adopted by the

company. We are also unable to ascertain its

consequent impact, if any, on the Standalone Ind

AS financial statements.

2. Auxiliary Business Division,

Bengaluru

a. Non - receipt of balance Confirmations

with regard to "l rade Receivables. Trade

Payables, Other Current Assets and

Other Current liabilities and hence,

impact of the same on the standalone

financial statements cannot be

quantified.

b. The Company records rental income

generated from the buildings situated on

the land w'hiclJ is not recorded in the

books ot accounts of the Coiiipany. On

examination of’ records produced for

verification. the status of the land and its

ownership is in the name of HMT

Limited.

Management Heply

The inventory isx alued using the weighted

average cost method except in the case of

consumables comprising of lou value

items which is valued on estimated basis.

Accounting Software is going to be

installed in the store department.

Hciwever, there is no material impact inthe

valuation of inventories.

Letters were sent throughe mail and post

to all parties requesting thcm toconfirm the

balance as on 31.03.2024. Reconciliations

as per available records is carried out on

ongoing basis. Consequential adjustment

and provision are made wherever required

as per management assessment. But

confirmation was not received from the

parties.

Tire unit was fomied tolook aiicr the Estate

maintenance of the units at Bangalore.

Consequently. due to an increase in the

maintenance costof the estate.the unit start

generating the income. Post subsidization

in 2000 of the Company the Land and

buildings have been transferred to Mls.

I IMS“ Machine Tools Limited, in line with

the scheme of Arrangement. Hence the

land and builditigs are not recorded in the

books ofaccounts of the unit. However, the

mutation of Title Deeds is yet to be done in

the name oflJM"f Machine Tools Limited,

Frequency of

Qualification

Repetitive

Repetitive

First Time

1



Ind AS 40 requlres the Company to

obtäin ä fair valuätîön report of thü

investment properties thorna registered

valuer as defined under Rule 2 of

Cömpanies (Reğist red Väluërs .and

Valuation) Rules, 2017. Howevër, we

observe that the Ł“ompany has not

complied with the.above requirement as

prescribed my Ind AS-40.

3. Cofpöratë Head Offićë øhd Company

asø whole

Non - receipt of balance .Confirmations.

with regard to Trade Receivables, Trade

Payables,. .othër . _ urrent Assets and

Other .Current liäbilities arid hence,

impact of the same on the standalone.

financial statemerițs cannot be.

quantified.

(b) IND AS 40 defines Investment Property

as property heİd to earn mntals or for

.capital appreeiatiori or boțh. It is

observed that Corporate Head .Office

derives rental income partly trots

building (owned by theentity) which is.

not clasșifiëd as Investmënt property in

the standalöne financial stateméfits.

Ind A3 40 required thę Company to

obîaiñ ä fair valuati0fi repört ofi the

investment propërties. froma :rë” ister

valuer as defined under Rule. .2 of

.Companies (Registered Valuers .anò

Valuation) Rules, 20 l7. Howevér, we

observe that the Company. has not.

complied with the above requirement as

prescribed by Ind AS-40.

(d) Ind-AS 109 requires an entity to apply

expected credit loss. (E L model for

intherevenue reeörds to this ëffeet. Fresh

Leaše deeds inrespect of Land arepending

forthe execution.

Since 4he ABD is looking after estate and

!employeeš of Bängalore based offices

including HMT Mac hine Tools Division,

Bangalore, the rental income reoordeò in

the unit books to..mairrtăin the estate etc:

The Cqmpäny hasnutobtained ãny fäif

valuation of the investment property from

art independëút valuer.

Since the CÓmpăny has fiot restated the

financials statement, the fåir value has been

diielöied bãsëd on the. Guidance: value of

the Investment Property aś òn 31.03.20ż4.

Further, as per clause 32 of Ind AS-4Ö,

valuation of investment property by

indeperiòèrít valuer is not mãndatoiy.

Lettërs .were sønt thróughe mail and post

to all partiei requesting them toconfirm the

balance as on) 1.03.2024. Reconciliations

as per available records is carried out on

ori8 oin basis: Consequential adjustment

and provision are made wherever required

as per management as.sessmgnt. But

confirmation wäs not received from the

parties.

The subject property isä owner-occupied

property .i.e. owned and oćcupieò by the

Gömpäny, The purpose of short term let

out is to earn rental to meet thecost of its

maintenance. The same is not held evèn

for capital apprecìäiiön. Hence, being an

owner-occupied property, it has been

treated as PPE as per Ind AS16.

e Company hasnotobtained any fair

xalua.hon of the \nves' nes\I proper from

an independent valuer.

!Since the Company hasnotrestated the

financials itatement, the.fair value has been

disclosed based on the Guidance value of

the Investment Property as .on 31.fi3.2024

and disc.losed in Financials statement No.

.no:38(B) Further, as per clause 32 Of Ind

AS-40, valuation of investment property

by independent value.r is not mandatory.

There is no component .of time value of

monev involved while mcognising the

First Ti.rnë

Repetíțive.

First Time

Fitst Time

Repetitive



(g)

measurement and recc¿anitiou of

impairment loss. Hou'cver. as per the

infomiaiion and explanation giv'en to us

no ECL matrix was prepared for the

peri‹ad under audit for creating provision

for l‹is.s at lois'ancc.I leiace, uc are uiiablc

to ascertain its irr\pact, if any, on the

Standalone Ind AS financ ial statements.

(o) As perI nd AS- 109, the C“ompany has to

recognize loss allowance for expected

credit losses on a financial asset. In the

instant c‹ise. ue obscrvc thal the

Company has long outstanding

receii able from HM"f MachineTools

limited in respect uf u'liich the

C r›iiipany has nol recorded any expected

credit losses. In our opinion as HMT

Macliinc "lools l.td is incurring

continuous losses and lfasa negative nei

a'crlh, the ahi] ii of the C°cmgan}’ te

rec‹c›'ci the aiizuunt recei› ahlc frum

H BIT Macl ii‹c fr ols Liirtited reicains

doublfiil.

As per Scliedtile III of C'onipaiiies Act,

20.13. tradc pajal›les íncltide alt amoiints

tluc oti account€f piirchasc uf Woods anri

scrx'ices rccci› ed in the normal ccuirse of

bijs i llCSs.Ï 11 tIlCi j1 ha j1t ciJ C. x 'e ohscnc

thal en amt›unt of” làsiS 1.0.99 It\«s u'lz ich

is prcscntI¿ Jisclnsed as AccrueJ

expenscü rinder thc ltaad Uthor Ú'urrent

LiabJlities n vist ha clisclused fiilder

Trndc Pa}ables. F rirtl ei, tlc Coinpan

njriüt pro 'idc a eina an‹il}’sis tor the

amount ‹lisclosed mtdcr lhe hcad

com panies tiiider sectioti 248 of The

Coiiipanics Act. ?0 13. I Íowever.

audii cx'idcnce to establi em that tlicj th›

not hax'c sticl4 1r‹iiisactions.

revenue. Honeycr. the provisions against

trade receivables are recognised as per best

judgement ofthemanagement based on the

current available information. Prox'isioii

iiiadc in the bt›oks are revie cd on an

ongoing basis.

HMT Machine Tools I.imil€d lS lJ°^' *- F'irsi Time

liti3c land bank and the market valtic of’

these land is mitch hipher than the long

outstanding receix able from them. c\’cr

consideritig the guidancci altie. The same

ix ill be recoi ered from theprocecds on safe

of land. As such thcrc is no ECI..

The I iabil ities to ards the prociireiiieiits First Time

ha›e beets classified under Trade Payable

ated otlicr thorn proctircrnent as 'Accrued

3



Q.UAU" ED .OPINION OF.STATUTORY AUDITORAND MANAGEMENTREPLIES

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.— 2023-24

1. HMT IMiTED ț*H TL!*)

Aiidit Observations

1. Food Processing Machinery Uni4i

Aurangabad

Management fiëply

As per information and explanation given to us e inventory is value.d using the weighted

with regard to Invøntoiy valuation as stated in

Note No.2 (ii) (j) stock óf ràw material, it is

valued by adopting Weighted Average. C:ost

method. However, in the inventory statement

prCìvided for verificätion purpose, the correctness

of stock items rates and therèfore, cost could trot

be verified due to absence of sufficiefit and

appropriate audiț evidenc.e. Owing tothenature

of the Company's records and in the absence of

sufficient audit evidence, wé are unable tu

ascertain ifthere is material departure from the

Weighted Average Cost Methõd adopted by the

company. We are also unable to asćertain its

consequent impact, ifany, on the Standalonë Ind

AS financial statements.

2. Auxiliary Business Division,

.BeneaIurii

Non - rëüeipt of balänće Colifirmatíons

Payables, Other Current Assets and

Othér Currehi liabilities änd heñce,

impact of the same ön :the standalone

finanuial statements cannot be.

quantified.

b. The .Company records rental income

generated from theòuildiriğs situated on

the land which is not recorded in thø

bøoks ofaccounts of the Company. On

ëxamifiation of records produced for

verification, the statiis óf the lanÔ and its

ownership is in the name of HMT

Limited.

average cot tnethod éxsept in the ćase of

consumables corñprising of low value

items wbich is valued on estimated basis.

Letters were sent throughç mail and post

to all parties:requestingthem tocönfirmthe

balance as on3 I:03.2024: Reconciliations

äs. per a äilablti records is carried out on

óngoing òasis. Consequentiaİ adjuitmertt

and proviiiön are iìiadë wherëver.requirëó

!as. per management assessme.nt. But

corifirmation was not received from the

parties.

The unit was foffTied tQ lookafterthe Estate

maintenance of the units at Bangalore.

Consequeni!y, due tö an increase in the

maintenance cost of the estate; the unit start

genemting theincorñë: Post subsidization

in 2000 öf the Company theLand and

buildings have been transferred to Mls.

HMT Machine Töołi Limited; in lirie: v'ith

the scheme .ofArrangement. Hence the

land and buildings are not recorded in the!

books ofaccounts of the unit. However, tire

mutation of Title Düedi is yet to be done in

thenäme öfHMT Machine Tools Limited,

e records to this effect. Frësh

Frequency of

Qualification

Repetitive

Repetitive.

.First Time
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C. Ind AS 40 requires the Company to

obtain a fair valuation report of the

investment properties froma registered

valuer as defined under Rule 2 of

Companies (Registered Val uers and

Valuation) Rules, 20 17. However, u'e

observe ihat the Company has not

ctimplied with theabove requirement as

prescribed by lnd AS-40.

3. Corporate Head Office and Company

asa whole

a. Non - receipt of balance Confirmations

with regard to Trade Receivables, Trade

Payables, Other Current Assets and

Other Current liabilities and hence.

impact of the same on the standalone

financial statements cannot be

quantified.

b. IND AS 40 defines Investment Property

as property heid to earn rentals or tor

capital appreciRtiofl Or botli. lt is

observed that Corporate Head Office

derives retital income partly from

building (owned by thecntity) whicli is

not classiiJed as Investment property in

the standalone financial statements.

c. Ind AS 40 requires the Company to

obtain a fair valuation report of the

investment properties froma registered

valuer as defined under Rule 2 of

Companies (Registered Valuers and

Valuation) Rules, 2017. However. we

observe that the Company has not

complredwith the above requirement as

prescribed by Ind AS-40.

Lease deeds inrespect of Land arepending

forthe execution.

Since the ABD is looking after estate and

employees of Bangalore based offices

including HMT Machine Tools Division,

Bangalore, the rental income recorded in

the unit books tomaintain the estate etc.

The Company hasnotobtained any fair

valuation of the investment property from

an independent valuer.

Since the Company has notrestated the

financials statement, the fair value has been

disclosed based on the Guidance value of

the Investment Property as pn 31.03.2024

and disclosed in Financials statement No.

no.38(B) Further, as per clause 32 of Ind

AS-40, valuation of investment property

by independent valuer is not mandatoiy

Letters were sent throughe mail and post

to all parties requesting them toconfirm the

balance as on 31.03.2024. Reconciliations

as per available records is carried out on

ongoing basis. Consequential adju.stment

and provision are made wherever re9Uircd

as per management assessment. But

contirmation was not reccived from the

parties.

he subject property isa owner-occupied

property i.e. owned and occupied by the

Company. The purpose of short term let

out is to earn rental to meet thecost of its

maintenance. The same is not held even

for capital appreciation. Hence, being an

owner-occupied property, it has been

treated as PPE as per Ind AS 16.

The Company has notobtained any fair

valuation of the investment property from

an independent valuer.

Since the Company hasnotrestated the

financials statement, the fair value has been

disclosed based on the €iiiidance value of

the InvestiJient Property as on 31.03.2024

and disclosed in Financials statement No.

no.38(B)I urther, as per clause 32 of hid

AS-40, valuation of investment property’

by independent valuer is not mandatory.

First Time

Rcpetitive

First "fine

First "time
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d. Ind-AS 109 requires an cntity to apply

expected crcdit loss (EC I.) model for

measurement and recognition of

impairment loss. However. as per the

information and explanation gix'en to us

no ECL matrix u as prcpared for the

period under atidit fur creating prox’isi‹›ii

for loss allowancc. l-lence. we are unable

to ascertain its impact. if any. on the

Standalone Ind AS ti naiicial statements.

A.s per Ind AS- 109. the Company hasto

instant case. u'e obscrve that the

Compan; has long outstanding

reccii'able morn HMT Machine Tools

Limited in respect of which the

Coinp‹inx has not recorded any expected

ci cdit losses. In our opinion as HMT

Machine l'ools Ltd is incurritig

continuoiis losses and hasa negatix'e net

worth, the abil its ot’ the Conipiiiij to

recox'er thc amount receivable front

HMT MachincTools Lim ited remains

doubtful.

expenscs under the head C)t1ierC urrcnt

Liabiliires na iist be discloscd under

Trade Pax'ablcs. l’iir1l+cr, the Company

i4i iist prt›x ide a3cina ‹inalj sis fo1’ ltte

aiiiount disclosed under the head

‹lccructl Expenses.

There is no com ponent of time value tif Repetitivc

money i nvolved wh ile rccognising the

revenuc. l4oxsever, the prtn' isions against

trade receivables are recounised as per best

judgeirent oi'the management based cri the

c urrclit as ili l:lble it\fovmatiOn, PTOSisiori

made in thc bouks arc reriewed on an

otigoing basis.

HMT Machine Tools Lire ited is having l'irst Time

IJtigc tartd hank and the markct ’alue nf

lhcse land is much !\igl er than the lony

outstanding recci› ahle from them, ox'er

consiñcrit¿ tlte guidance value. The saidc

› ill f›e rcco› ered from lhepr‹›ceeds off sale

rJf]and. As sncIs t]1ere is no EL‘L.

I“he liabilities tue ards the procurements l'irst Time

have been classified under ’l“rade Payablc

and mhm than procurement as “Accrued

expcnses” gronpcd uncler Other (’urrent

L iabilities. The practice is bcing followed

consistently. Ho›sever, the same ss'ill be

rc›'ieued and ii'ill accordingly be classificrl

during 2t)24-25

"f'here are no lransactions i› iih .stuck oti’

Contpanics ii/s 248 caf tlac t“orn panics Act

20.13 during the year as per the inailable

init rmation.

Repctitive

6



2. HMT MACHBINE TOOLS LIMITED (“MTL”)

MBX, Bangalore

a. Ind AS 2 — accordi•s to the details and

infonnation prt›Y ided to us.the value of Raw

Materials. Work- in- progress and Stock in

Trade (Finished C oods) are taken on the

basis of’ job cards issued for the particular

work order and stock taking is on Weighted

Av'erage basis, houevei’, due to w‹›i-

availability of x'aluation report and detailecl

workitig of Inventories. we a re unable to

c‹›mirent on the compliance with And AS 2

and the impact on financials due to this.

Also. the physical vcritication of stock la as

not been done at rcgular inten'als.

Accounts forinieresi' penalty/ damages for

thc de1ay'ed remittance of pro› idetit ftMd

dues to the appropriate authorities as at

March 3.1, 2tJ24, and the same is non

quantifiable. Further, no pro› isiom has been

made forpenalty/damages. ifam pay able on

non-settlcment / non-pa›’inent of’ gratti ilj

dues asatMarch 3.1. ?024. We are unable to

express ali opinion on the ink pact of this noi-

prnv ision on the finaiic ial statements.

c. In the absence of conlirna‹iti‹›n front partics

regarc)inp Trade payables. Trade

reccivables. Advances received. Ad ances

paid, Deposits (inelurling security deposit).

the process of i'ecoNcil iation of paiT\'

balances is incomplete. Further it is

cheek ed thal balance in ccnain accoiinis

hay ing no transactions for more than li e

ycars have been cari'ied toward. Due t‹›

non-ax'ailabilitv of ctinfiririiti‹ans of balance

ft oin parties, ise are unable tti express an

opinion ton the corrcctncss of the balances

slated and thei i’ impact on the finiinc ial

statcmerits.

Um it n'ill submit all thc documents to

Branch Auditor evidencing tin

coinpl tance of Ind A S 2. during the

Interim Audit for the IY 2024-25.

NJ nit will also ensure that physical

verification of stock is done atregular

intem'als.

f.In itI as mitrlc prof iüit›n for liabilities

v herever demarid is raisnt ht’ the

AL1tI1oi itÎCs. È!I1Ît \\i Il Lake ileCeSS I-\,

action inI Y 2U?4-2û in consul ltatinn

» itlz MTD

Confii mation of balances uncler Trade

patahles and othu'r liabilities arc so iylt

and rcconciliaticn as per tlzc a›’aiInb1c

Repetitivc

Repetitive

Rcpeiiti›e

First tiirte



addition, there exists vast area of open

spaces. As, the title deeds of the land.

physical verification, survey and

demarcation of land is not provided, we are

unable to comment on the ownership,

accuracy of the area of land usage and

encroachment ifany.

MrP r:njore

a. ‘I'he unit has created prox'isioii f‹›r the

Ciuslorns i efvind claims arriciintinp t‹a

f(s.8.78 lakhs and €’la iin recoverable

(Forei ri) nniottnting ter Rs. l .53 laLhs btit

there is no ccrtainlj ofi ecoi ei ing the samc

and hadtobe i›+ittcri off.

b. As per Ind AS-19. defined benefit plan is

termed as any plan in which theenterprise

has obligation to provide theagreed benefits

to current and former employees and the

actuarial risk and investment risk fall.

Therefore, the unit has not determined the

actuarial valuation liability for Provident

Fund dues as at 3Ist March 2024.

Consequent effect of the same on the

financial statements for the years is rtot

ascertainable. Accordingly, provident mind

set up by employer which require interest

shortfall to be met by the employerwould be

ineffect defined benefit plan in accordance

with Ind AS- 19. Hence this is not in

Compliance with the Ind AS- 19 Employee

8enefits”

c. Non - receipt of balance Confirmations with

regard to Irade Receivahles, Trade

Payables, Otlic•r Current Assets and Other

CurrentI iabil ities and hence, impact of the

same on thestandalone tinaneia[ statements

cannot be quantified.

Kalamassery

a. As pet the Aoct›unting policies ot’ I-IM1’

Machine Toois Lim ited, Kalamasse

Provision exists in the books of First time

accounts and approval of competent

authority for write olT will be sought in

year2024-25. However, it w ill not have

iinpact on profit.

Necessary action will be taken duris First time

2024-25

Confirmation of balances under Trade

Receivables. Loans& Advances, Trade

payables and (Other Current Liabilities

are sought arid reconciliation as per the

available records is carried out on

ongoing basis. Consequential

adjustment and provision are made

wherever required as per management

assessment

Repetitive

Audit observation has been noted. The Repetitive

materials eyre dispatched before 31 st

'g '-?.- , ,

> '" t



(MTK), revenue inrespect of sale of goods

will be recognized atthe point in time that

the customer obtains control of the goods

or services which is when it has taken tiUe

to the products assumed the risks and

rewards of ownership of the product or

services. As per the shipping terms there

are certain FOR (customer premises)

contracts at the year end. Though the

invoices in respect of the eight contrants

were raised on or before3 l March 2024,

the risk and reward of ownership was not

transferred before 31 March 2024 asthg

machines were received at customers site

afier 31 March 2024. Recognitioii of sales

revenue on invoice basis in FOR

(ciistomer premises) contracts without

actual delivery at customer premises hue

resulted in overstatement of Orales by

Rs.1.33,68,730/-.

b. Notes No.10 Other Assets incltide Rs,

1,59,61,090/-being ADHOC-ADVANCE

(APRIL 2019)-PS and Rs. 1,31,34,286/-

being ADHOC-ADVANCE (APRII.

2019)-WG discloscd under Advance to

Suppliers/Emplojees lneluding Advance

No. III — considered good. This is monthly

ad hoc payment totheemployees ofHMT

Machine tools I.td vide offiee order

NO02l(M)/19 dated 30th September

2019.The payment was made pursuant to

approval of Administrative Ministry vide

letter No l -0501/3/2019+P.E.X(E198395)

dated l9th September 2019,where the

employees of HMT Machine tools

Limited has been paid an additional

monthly ad hoc amount equal to l00/• of

the running Basic Pay plus deamess

allowance of the month, w'ith effect from

1st April 20 19 (HMT Machine tools

Limited made profits dUflng 201 8-19 ),

The ad hoc payment attracts Income Tax.

Further the ad hoc payment madu wasnot

adjusted while settling retired employées.

Wc are of the opinion that this is in the

nature of’ expenditure and should be

charged tothe Statement of Profit and loss

March 2024. The customer has

accepted the consignment.

Corrective action taken in the First time

consolidation at Head Quarters by

paising necessary entry charging to

Statement of Profit and Loss Account.

account, as this is an employee benefi p« Ii



MTH,

payment for which Income tax is

applicable. Had it been an advance, it

should have been deducted while settling

retired employees. Hence, Other Assets

are overstated to this extent. (Note:

Necessary rectification entry has been

passed in Machine ’fools Directorate

8ooks.)

Land shown inNote No.3A Property, Pla

and Equipment and in Note No. 3B

lnvestinent Property comprises of 349 Acres

asperthestatement furnished by the unit. Its

per the copies of records furnished to us, 781

Acres 26 Cents 266 sq links property was

assigned to HM"l Liiriited by Govt. of

Kerala ini 973. Out of this 432 Acres 19

Cents and 126 sq Links were surrendered/

gified/ given for various purposes. Balance

land in hand is 349 Acres 40 Cents and 140

Sq links. All this land is in the name ofHMT

Limited and not in the name of HMT

Machine Tools limited.

d. Margin money deposits amounting to Rs.

84,97,769/- has been classified as other

bank balances. Out of the total margin

money deposit, amount of Rs.

24.64,346.00/-are subject to confirmation

and reconciliation, the consequent effect

on the financial statement is

unascertainable.

e. The Unit has provided interest on MSME

ona simple iiiterest basis on the annual

outstanding balance. Also, in the case of

some agreeirients, even if the terms of

conditions specify payment within 30

days, the unit has taken 45 days as the

minimum days forcalculation of MSMF

interest.

Hyderabad

a. Division has disclosed the amount of

Rs.25.?I crores under contingent liability

Due to funds constraints, the mutation

of the property not yet done inthename First Time

ofHMT Machine Tools Ltd.

Necessary action will be taken to First Time

reconcile the same during 2024-25

Audit observation has been noted.

MSME Actprovides for upto 45 days, First time

interest liabilities has been worked out

considering the delay’ after 45 days.

I forever, same w ill be reviewed and

the liability will revised in year

2024-25 on case to case basis.

Since the claim against the Company is First time

under dispute. Compsny hascontested

the claim and outflow of resources is
instead ot” creating a liability undcr not probable. As per Ind-AS 37,it lfas

Expenses' head as the amouni is related tO accnrdingly been disclosed as

property tax payable to Greater Hyderabad ,Jtiit rliability.
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Municipal Corporation (GHMC) onFactory

mid ’l'ownship and it isa clear liability.

b. Dix'ision has not provided for the clear

liability’ of Rs.12.31 crore under"Expcnses“

head relating to water and se»crage charges

bill raised by Ilyricrabad Metropolitan

WateT Supply & Sewerage Board

(HMWSSB) forsupply of water. instead

shown Rs.l,24,59.3()8/- crorc tilider

contingentI iability.

C. The division has iiiade an excess provision

of Rs,l .41 crores on account of Non-

moving Raw material. Stores and Spares and

I'ools vip to year cndcd3l st March 202a

\x hich is ctintinuing in books ft›r the

Financial year ended 31 March. 2024. I his

la‹is led to understatement txt Inventories in

11ie financial statements.

MTA, Ajmer

a. N‹aii - reccipt of balance Cunt4rrnations u itli

regard to Trade kcceiiables. Trade

Payables, OilierC iirrctit Assets and Other

C“urreiit liabilitics and hencc. impact ot’ thc

SalTlc ol1 the stalidalone liiiancial slatenaents

cannot be qtiantificd.

b. ’l'he company’ has mat provided for interest

for deliij in pax'inent to MSML’s asper

M icro. small. and Medium Enierprises

PTH, Praga Tools, Hyderabad and MTD,

Pa;ables. Other C'iirrent Assets and Oilier

Since theclaim against the Company is Pirst tinge

under dispute. CtHnpaiij’ has contested

the claim ated outtlon of resources is

not probable. As per Ind-AS 37. it has

accordingly bccn disclosed as

Contingent liability.

A tc hnic‹iI com inittee has heen I irst time

cut stituted to assess the suitability' ct

the nonino› ing items to rccommend for

iju“ccssa action.

C onfirination ct balances under Trade kepetitix'e

Receix'ablcs. Lt›aiis& Ads'ances, Trade

pa›ables and OtherC ui rentL iabil ities

arg soughl and rec‹ancil iation as per the

available records is carried out on

ongoing basis. Consequential

adjiistiiient and prov ision arc in‹ide

4’1ierex cr recJuired as per iiiiiniigeineiit

asscssmcnt

Nccessarj ‹action w ill be taken for FirstT itilc

proc idin* interest during 2()24-25

Cot1iJnnati‹in ct balances under Ti'adc Rcpetitive

Receivables. Loans& Ads anccs. Trarle

pa}a bles and OtherC invent I.iabil ities

iiie soughl antii cconc i1 iation as per the

11



same on thestandalone financial statements adjustment and provision are made

cannot be quantified. wherever required as per management

assessment

3.HMT MACHINE TOOLSUNITED

DISCLAIMER OPENION ON MTH,HYDERABAD

(a)Property, Plant, and Equipment: According

to the information available to us, the

Division has immovable property

transferred to it on lease from the

Government of India, but it is not in

compliance with lND AS 116 as the lease

deeds were notprovided. With reference to

Nrite 3A cf the financial statements, the

Division 100% of its cost to

depreciation over the useful life of the asset

with a residual value of Rs. 1. Upon

examining theasset register, we noticed that

the dates of purchase of the assets were not

available, which raises doubts about the

remaining useful life of these assets.

However. division lollowing this as per

instructions given by head office

(b) Capital Work in Progress: We draw an

attention to Note 3B of the financial

statements which discloses capital work in

progress (CWIP) ofRs.l, l0,00,000. During

the course of audit no details in respcct of

CWI P provided. In the absence ofthedetails

of the same, we are unable to form an

opinion on the existence, completions and

x-aluation of the Capital Work in Progress.

(c) Inventory Valuation: We draw attention to

Notes5 and 25 of the financial statements,.

The division disclosed its inventory at e

The immovable property is gifted by

State Government to the Company

andnoton lease. The unit has correctly

disclosed the same under PPE as per

IndAS 16.The value of the Assets are

being carried forward in books of

accounts as per historical records

available with the company and

calculation of depreciation is being

carried out based on the useful life of

assets from the year of acquisitions.

The closing balance of Gross Block,

Accumulated depreciation and Net

Block are carried forward with due

reconciliation every year and have

been subjected to Audit in all these

years. So it is submitted that

depreciation on all these assets in the

books have been carried out since the

year of acquisition mentioned in the

fixed assets register even though date

of acquisition is not mentioned.

Depreciation on PPE is provided on

straight line basis over the useful life of

the various assets as prescribed in

Schedule II to the Act, pro-rata with

reference to the date of addition or

deletion. As and when PPE gets fully

depreciated, Re.1/- Is retained as book

value of the PPE. PPE costing less than

Rs. 10,000/- shall be depreciated to

Re.1/- in the year of purchase.

A L45 Lathe Machine was received on

31.3.2022 from supplier and pending

erection and commissioning, the same

is carried under CWIP. The

Commissioning work will be

completed shortly. PO

No.1103110/57694 dt.20-2-2019

Tne valuation of inventories and the

*jarovisJoo towards non-moving items is

First time

First Time

Hirst Time
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No.5 Rs.37.12.74,054 for the year ending

3 I.03.2024 (Pr.Ycar: 39,05,51,467) for

which ue were unable to obtain sut'ticicnt

and appropriate audit ex'idence regarding the

cxistencc, tiile, and x-alue of the inventory’ as

c›n that date.F urther. during the ycar under

consideration, a proc isic›n againsl non-

moving inventories madC Caf Rs.l, 1.9.86,909

and charged t‹› the protit & loss account

under “Other Expenses - Note No.25” w'li icli

carrying the total proxisiun iaiade for the

j ear ending 31.03.2024 is of Rs.4.82,85,601

(Pr.Year 3.63,02,692) disclosed under Note

(d) Trade Rcceixa bins: W'e di'a attention to

Notc6 or’ the financial statements. vv hich

di scloscs It iidc receix'ablcs arnr›iintine to

Rs.35.51,88,038 (Pr.j car Rs.3 2.80,05.7*97).

Customer-u'ise balance confirmations erc

not proc ided fear the year endcd March 3.1,

2024. In the absence of con Urination letters

front customers, ue are unable io confirm

an‹l satis ourselves regarding trade

rcccivables. Additionally, customer-misc

‹ink transaction- disc apeitig of trade

rcceivables ii'as not pro‹luced for audiL

axeing of trade i‘cccivab1es ‹is disclosed in

Noie GA.

,4llowance for Credit I.oss: We draw

‹attention to Noles 6, 6A and 25 of flue

lilioncial statements in rcspcci of allow'ancc

expccled ci edit lt›ss’ under Note No,25

Other Expenses”. Tire total airtiunt

([iron ision) of’a1l‹›isiince for expelled credit

loss’ is carrying at Note Nu.(› is

Rs,2fi,79,7 7.0G8 {Pr) ear Rs ?2.l0,G8,8?f›,

made lbr expected credit loss' against the

as per accounting policy of the

Company

Proper disclosure has been made in

the financials under Note No. 6A,

Additional disclosure. Suitable

provisions against the trade receivable

aging more than S years has been

made in the Books as per accounting

poIicY.

First Time

There is no coinponent oftimc value of First Tiine

ni‹›iicy involv ed uh ile rccognisi ng the

revenue. l lois ever. the ros'isirans

against trade receivati1es arc recoenisc‹l

os per best judgement of the

iranagcnient based on the cttn‘cnt

Trade ftcccivahles and for the c ir ’ing

an o nt as at tlic year cnJ. Thereforc. ve ar@›
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provision made durilig tile year for

‘expected credit loss’ and the carry'ing

amount for ‘expected credit loss’ is

sufficient

OtherC ciment Assets: Wc drain’ attention to

Notc S- Other C rirrent assets” of“ the

financial siatenients. the dix ision disclosed

the ad\’ances given to the siippliers and

ernployees whicli airounting to

Rs.G.97.85.415 (PY Rs 7.37 fi2 ô?3 ). 4 tte

ditiS Î On frÎlS tO lTl hfllta i14 the detai Is of’ the

siippliers & ernployccs to »hom thc

adi'ances given w liich is the prinâary

rcsponsibil ity of the di› ision in maintenance

of theaccotintinp records. In the absence of

the saine ise are minable to form an opinicm4

on the saine. Additionally. the diiision

pr‹›i ided a provision ft›r impainnent uf

doubtful advaiices’ against thèse stippliers

and eirployecs ad› ances s’il ich aiiioiiiiting

ri› Rs.2.08, 1.5.692 (Pr.j car Rs.2,08,1 5,692).

Tlic div ision faits to justif3 the provision

wade against hic suppl ier and cinplc›yees

adn ances. C onseqiiently. yee are unable to

comment on thesaine.

Barre 'in3s& Other tn aiicial liabilities: We

dra x attetition to Note 1.3.B and Note 1.5 of

the financial statements. nh ich discloses

that the Division at ‹rileda term loans from

the Got eriiiiiciit of I Indiaa irc›uuting tO Rs.

90.73,05.000 { HY Rs.90.73.0 ,t100) »'ith

interest accrticd anJ due discloscd iis the

acte Ü‹›. 15 amountin¿ u› Rs.I 30,98.8?.874

(PY. ks.1.1 5.98,29.947) rcspectixely.

security atid tense of i’epax’rnett teas not

pro› ided ‹›r disclcascd in the linaiiciiil

statements. Due to non-disclosure of

rcqii ired intonation ›i li ich isa violtflion ot’

Schedule lll. I'urther. is'e arc unable to torn

an t›pin ion on thc current and mrati-current

)iortions of’ the liabi lits disclosed snider

Other Financial Liabiiities. Xddilionally.i e

are Durable tea conedude the position c›f these

loans as no third-parti contii‘irolion u as

pri›x’ided for tllc iIti£1it excepta lctier li'oni

The said amount includes the year

1992 pay revision arrears relating to

large number ofemployees including

Ex-employees. The same is maintained

separately and summary has been

accounted \nthe financ\ats.

First time

The details are maintained at Machine
‘“ To''’

Tools Directorate.
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(h) Trade payables: Wc draw attentitin to Note

14 of the financial statcmclits. shicli

discloses the atnounts dire to vendoi-s

älTlOUlltÎlJg to Rs.24.50,l S,324 (Pr. Year

Rs.21,17.63.745). In the absence of

confiriiiation lettcrs from vendors, ne are

unable to conti rm and satist/x cursel es

regarding trade pa;ablcs. Further. the

tolIov'iit amounts included in the ‘”! rade

pa4’nhle undcr Ncle No. I4" that ma 'c

remained static .’ colttin ling cciJlparcd tL thc

pres it›us y'ear is'ithoui ¡ustification:

• Liability of t4QL Expense: Rs.5.96,88.819

• f[ydcrabad Metro W'ater: Rs.8, 18,37,775

• I. iabil iq for SCR Lxpense: Rs.79.70,l 64

In the absence of u hich we ‹irc unable to

fonn an opinic›n the same.

W‘ith rcfcrence to the amount disclosed in

Ntite No.1 4A €af the finaneia1 statements

a hich discloses ‹il“ amounts due to Micro

etiterpri ses and small enterprises’ ot the

cliv ision as per MST ED Act.2006. Dir ision

la as inst been provicled the recognition

criieri‹t for MSME x'cndors frs’ the pui pose

of’ orir audit. wtiich rise d‹ ubt on the

cui'rectness ot ilie disclosiii'c given in

financiiil statements. Addiii‹ nally.› endor-

\\ ise and trai\sacticJJ-x\i c nșu imi ot trade

paiablos is not pro\’idcd to ccrtfirm the

agcing o£ lrt\dle pa} ahlus as discloscd in Ncte

î 4B.

(i) Rc\’ci1iie rcc i\ d in art›a ‹cu: \\’e drag

altor ticn t‹› Nc›te 16 ot” tltc fiilancial

stat0incnt under -tJtJlcr curreiJt 1ishil ilie ”

› hich includcs ‘rcicniie i’eecix’cd in

add ance’ aiiiotitititig tc Rs. 10.45,7f), 143

(Pr.Year Rs.l t),33.72,3 24). The di› ision

flails to proc ide the deiails of the arnoiinis

received t'rorn the rcspeeti ve ciist‹iirers, and

Siattitorv dues: \\‘e aise drap attcnl ion tir the

sameN o[eNc›. 1.6 of the l7nanc ial staleiiicnts

iiiidcr Otlier liahil it îes’ vih ich incl udes

‘stattitory duce’ airotintinș to

Îts.69.96,09.?l t) (Pr.Year, Rs.67.36.07.948):

”9'itlilioldin of ’[’axes and ()ther 1'ax

Confirmation of balances under Frade

payables and OtherC urrcnt Liahil ities

are souttht and reconciliati‹›n as per the

ay ailablc records is carried out on

ongoing basis. Conseqticntial

adjustment and provision are made

u'hercver required as per management

assessment. The MSME details aie

available w ith Material Management

Department.

First time

In respect of old advance received *' *”* "**

from customer will review and

neces5ary action for adjustment will be

carried out in FY 24-25.

Due to severe financial constraints the

unit was not able to clear statutory

dues timely. However, efforts are

being made toclear these dues.

l’”irst ”I iine
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Payables" amoiint to Rs2,37,35,260

(Pr.Year. Rs.3,69,97,253). Significant

portion of these amounts are due from

earlier years. The division has not been

provided the timelines for the amounts due

to various statutory authorities, and any

assessment orders for the said dues.

Consequently, we are unable to form an

opinion on these amounts.

(k) Other liabilities: We further also draw an

attention to the sameNote 16ofthefinancial

statements, ‘Gther I iabilities’ includes

following liabilities:

• Miscellaneous Recoveries: Rs.

1,20.89,855

• Advance Received Against Rent : Rs.

25,93,974

• SCR Expenses: Rs. 52,69, 152

4’he division has not been prox'ided the

details of the parties to whom these amounts

are payable / due and the confirmation

letters from the respective parties.

Consequently. we are unable to four an

opinion on these amounts.

(l) Other expenses: With reference to Note 25

of the financial statements - ‘Other

expenses’ which includes PF Trust Loss

Rs.1.25.00,000 (Pr.year Rs.1,25,00.000).

For the same, thedivision explained that the

l)ivision had opted topay Provident Fund to

its ‘trust but has defaulted in payment of

contribution to the PF trust. Consequently,.

ihe Division has shared a loss of Rs.

1,25.00.000/- by the PF Trust due to this

default. This amount is carried to the

i3alance sheet under Statutory dues and

disclosed in 'OtherC urrenl I iabil ities’ at

Note No.16. The division has riot been

prox'ided any basis for said amounts.

Consequently, we are unable to form an

opinion on the amounts charged to the

Statement of Protit and Loss and carrying to

the balance sheet under liabilities.

(in) Contingent liabilities: We draw attention to

Note 26 ofthe financial statements, which

discloses contingent liabilities related to

pendingI itigations and various cases agaiJysl_.

Since most of the liabilities are very

old. Necessary action for adjustment

will be taken after reviewing the same.

In view of the pending finalization of

PF Trust Balance Sheet, provisionally

the trust amount hasbeen considered.

Since theclaim against the Company is

under dispute. Company hascontBStñd

the claim and outflow of resources is

not probable. As per lnd-AS 37, it has

the Division. We arc unable to ass ñh '

First Time

First Time

First "l"ime
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reliability ot’ these disclosures in the

financial statemenls. nor can verify the

status of the litiitations and cases presented.

Consequentl}’. axe are unable to measure the

impact or’ these contingent liabilities or the

financial statements. as the current status of

many cases could not be tracked due to

insufficient information.

accordingly been disclosed as

Contingent liahilig'.
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